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introduction ro-ràdh
by Ian Walford, Chief Executive

Welcome to our annual report and accounts for 2013-14.

2013-14 was a year of enormous progress for Historic Scotland. 
Not only did we meet or exceed all our performance targets, we did 
so against the backdrop of fundamental change to our organisation. 

The Historic Environment Scotland Bill was introduced to the 
Scottish Parliament in March 2014. That not only emphasised the 
importance of our historic environment to the Scottish Government, 
but also took us a step closer to the creation of the new lead 
public body for the sector, Historic Environment Scotland (HES). 

We worked very closely with the Royal Commission on the 
Ancient and Historical Monuments of Scotland (RCAHMS) 
throughout the year as we continued to bring our two 
organisations together. That’s given us a real sense of what’s 
possible for the future.  I thoroughly enjoyed visiting colleagues 
across the country and talking about the potential of HES.

Ian Walford 
Chief Executive.

Floodlit view 
of the palace 
exterior and 
Drum Tower 
at Edinburgh 
Castle.

Commando 
Memorial, 
Spean Bridge, 
Kilmonivaig.

Stained glass 
window at St 
Margaret’s 
Chapel, 
Edinburgh 
Castle, added 
to the Chapel 
in 1922 and 
depicting 
St Columba.
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Delivering on our 
targets
We saw an outstanding increase 
in visitor numbers in 2013-14, 
with almost 200,000 additional 
visitors bringing our total to 
3.45 million. On top of that, 
membership reached an all-
time high, exceeding 140,000 
members for the first time. 

Our commercial income was 
up by 12% on 2012-13 to a 
total of £36.3 million enabling 
us to invest in Scotland’s 
historic environment. 

And we achieved £2.4 million 
of savings against a target of 
£1.2 million and improved 
energy efficiency across 
the estate. 

Some other key achievements
The completion of the Iona Abbey project in May 2013 was a high point. 
We delivered a significantly improved visitor experience including a 
complete redisplay of the site’s museum which contains some of the 
most important early Christian sculptures in Britain and Ireland. New 
interpretation boards and an audio tour help visitors better understand 
the importance of St Columba’s monastery around the world. 

Completing this project was a great way to mark both the 
75th anniversary of the founding of the Iona Community 
and 1450 years since St Columba arrived on the island. 

Throughout 2013-14 we were also preparing for another important 
anniversary – the  700th anniversary of the Battle of Bannockburn 
in June 2014. In March 2014 the new £9.1 million Bannockburn 
Visitor Centre was opened in partnership with the National Trust for 
Scotland, the Scottish Government and the Heritage Lottery Fund.

Accolades and awards
2013-14 was packed with many other high-profile events and achievements. 

Edinburgh Castle was named Best UK Heritage Attraction for the third 
year running, and retained its top place among Scotland’s paid for 
visitor attractions. 

We achieved four or more VisitScotland stars over more than 90% of 
our sites. 

The Battle of 
Bannockburn 
Visitor Centre, 
Stirling. A 
collaboration 
between Historic 
Scotland and The 
National Trust 
for Scotland, 
the centre uses 
cutting-edge 
technology 
(including 3D 
display) to bring 
the battle to 
life for visitors 
and offering an 
experience unlike 
any other available 
in the UK. 

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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We were awarded a Special Mention Certificate (along with the 
National Trust for Scotland, social landlords and academic bodies)
in the area of energy efficiency in traditional and historic buildings. 

In total, we invested almost £17 million across the historic environment. 

We took on our single largest intake of traditional skills apprentices, 
when 18 young people from across Scotland started a four-year course. 

And we celebrated the news that the ongoing development of the 
Engine Shed in Stirling will be supported by £3.5 million from the 
Heritage Lottery Fund, with the outcome from the Stage 2 application 
process known in November 2014.

And much more besides!

Meeting challenges, managing change
For me, the most noteworthy aspect of a noteworthy year was the 
unstoppable energy, passion and commitment of my colleagues.

Day after day, we delivered - meeting (and exceeding) targets. Each 
target we met, each achievement, helped to safeguard our historic 
environment while promoting its understanding and enjoyment. 

At every level across the organisation I saw people come 
up against challenges and meeting them head on. 

Every day colleagues were out there managing casework and working 
with partners in heritage management, entertaining our 3.5 million 
visitors, supporting an unprecedented number of members, looking 
after all our buildings including our headquarters, and keeping our HR, 
IT, finance and communications services running and improving. For 
their efforts, they have both my admiration and my sincere thanks. 

The north side of 
the south range 
of Deer Abbey, 
Aberdeenshire.

Apprentice 
Alan Kilbride 
working on the 
final touches on 
a new gargoyle 
recently installed 
in Glasgow 
Cathedral.

Looking ahead
Moving into 2014-15, we’ve 
entered a key year in our transition 
to Historic Environment Scotland. 
As a key partner in shaping the 
Historic Environment Strategy 
Our Place in Time, HES will be the 
lead public body once it is fully 
established on 1 October 2015. 

We’re working with the Royal 
Commission to set joint key 
performance targets – in effect, to 
develop the new organisation’s 
personality as its structure is 
determined. We look forward to 
continuing our work enabling 
collaborative activity and 
supporting developments with, 
and for, others across the wider 
historic environment.

Most importantly, we’re working 
together to ensure that we 
continue to meet our conservation, 
tourism and management 
responsibilities – we’re protecting 
our primary purpose.

There’s a lot to be done, but I’m 
confident we’ll deliver the coming 
transition with the same 
enthusiasm, drive and 
determination we apply to every 
other area of our work.
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senior management team
sgioba Àrd-mhanaidsearan

Andrew Fleming 
Director of Policy
(to 22/07/2013)

Lisa Nicholson 
Director of
Communications

Gary Love 
Director of HR and IT

Stephen Duncan 
Director of Commercial 
and Tourism

Myriam Madden 
Director of Finance

Barbara Cummins 
Director of Heritage 
Management

David Mitchell 
Director of 
Conservation

Ian Walford 
Chief Executive

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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key performance targets
prìomh thargaidean coileanaidh 

Historic Scotland manages and measures its performance 
against an agreed set of Key Performance Targets (KPTs).

These KPTs are developed through internal consultation and 
are approved by the Cabinet Secretary for Culture and External 
Affairs. They are published on our website as part of our annual 
Business Plan.

In order to track our performance and to strive for improvements 
in the way we operate, we have set some ambitious targets (KPTs).  
We have deliberately ensured that the KPTs are challenging.

We monitor the KPTs on a quarterly basis to gauge 
progress and make adjustments to working practices in 

order for these to be met. Any required adjustments are 
done through regular communication with staff who are 
instrumental in enabling the Agency to meet these targets.

These KPTs for 2013-14 measure progress towards 
delivery of the five strategic priorities within 
our 2012-15 Corporate Plan. These are:
• Championing Scotland’s Historic Environment 

• Contributing to Sustainable Economic Growth

• Managing Scotland’s Historic Environment Creatively 

• Supporting the Transition to a Low Carbon Economy 

• Delivering our Business .

Caerlaverock Castle, 
Dumfries & Galloway.
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strategic priority one Championing Scotland’s Historic Environment 

KEY PERFORMANCE TARGET RESULTS 2013-14

MEASURE BASELINE 2012-13
TARGET/
RESULT

2013-14
TARGET/
RESULT

KPT 1 
Reduce the percentage of A-listed buildings 
at risk in partnership with Local Authorities 
and the historic environment sector 

8.2% Target: From 8.2%

Result: 8%

N/A – 
Bi-annual data 
collection

KPT 2
Conserve the monuments and historic 
buildings managed by Historic Scotland 
on behalf of Scottish Ministers

As per condition 
surveys and annual 
monument audits

As per condition 
surveys and annual 
monument audits

Achieved1

KPT 3
Continue to build membership numbers 122,242 Target: 122,242

Result: 131,481

Target: 137,000

Result: 140,217

KPT 4
Maintain Historic Scotland staffed sites with 
a VisitScotland rating of 4 stars or above

92% Target: 92%

Result: 92%

Target: 92%

Result: 92%

strategic priority two Contributing to Sustainable Economic Growth 

MEASURE BASELINE 2012-13
TARGET/
RESULT

2013-14
TARGET/
RESULT

KPT 5
Attract visitors to our sites 

3.37 million Target: 3.3 million

Result: 3.2 million

Target: 3.26 million

Result: 3.45 million

KPT 6
Employ additional apprentices

27 Target: 10

Result: 10

Target: 10

Result: 10

1  Conservation of monuments and historic buildings managed by Historic Scotland on behalf of Scottish Ministers was undertaken in 
accordance with needs established through inspection regimes including condition surveys (15 undertaken in 2013-14) and annual 
monument audits (135 undertaken in 2013-14). Data gathered during condition surveys and annual monument audits was used to inform 
annual maintenance and is also being used to inform strategic investment planning for the long term conservation of properties in care.

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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strategic priority three    Managing Scotland’s Historic Environment Creatively

KEY PERFORMANCE TARGET RESULTS 2013-14

Detail of the hammer 
symbol on the Class I 
Pictish symbol stone 
displayed against the 
wall of Abernethy 
Round Tower, Perth 
and Kinross.

The Waterloo 
Monument and 
Peniel Heugh, 
Scottish Borders. 
The monument was 
built to commemorate 
the Battle of Waterloo.

strategic priority four     Supporting the Transition to a Low Carbon Economy

MEASURE BASELINE 2012-13
TARGET/
RESULT

2013-14
TARGET/
RESULT

KPT 7
Speed up/improve our handling of statutory 
planning consultations, listed building and 
conservation area consent applications and 
scheduled monument consent to be processed 
in respective statutory timescales

98.39%
99.69%
96.08%

Target (%): 
91/97.5/82

Result (%):
97.92%
98.68%
98.58%

Target (%)
91/97.5/82

Result (%):
97.96%
98.28%
97.01%

KPT 8
Maintain the level of the 2011-12 grants budget 
and continue to invest in grant schemes

£12 million Target: £12 million

Result: £12 million

Target: £12 million

Result: £16.86 million 

MEASURE BASELINE 2012-13
TARGET/
RESULT

2013-14
TARGET/
RESULT

KPT 9
Reduce energy consumption at our 
sites against 2008-09 baseline 

2008-09
20,876,906 kWh

Target: 10%

Result 4%

Target: 8%

Result: 16%  
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Urquhart Castle, 
Highland.

strategic priority five  Delivering our Business 

KEY PERFORMANCE TARGET RESULTS 2013-14

MEASURE BASELINE 2012-13
TARGET/
RESULT

2013-14
TARGET/
RESULT

KPT 10
Generate income over £34.8 million from 
our sites and other commercial activities

£31.5 million Target: £33.2 million

Result: £32.3 million

Target: £34.8 million

Result: £36.3 million

KPT 11
Deliver efficiencies against expenditure 
levels on Scottish Government funding 

3% 
(£2.7 million)

Target: 3%
(£1.4 million)

Result: 4.7% 
(£2.2 million)

Target: 3%
(£1.2 million)

Result: 5.3%
(£2.4 million)

KPT 12
Achieve a performance 
rating across our sites from the 
Mystery Visit Programme

93.5% Target: 80%

Result: 89%

Target: 80%

Result: 88.9%

KPT 13
Levels of staff engagement 64% Target: From 64%

Result: 64%

Target: 64%

Result: 64%

KPT 14
Improve organisational resilience through a 
reduction in average working days lost (AWDL)

6.6 Target: 5.6

Result: 5.74

Target: 5.34

Result: 5.14

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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historic scotland’s 
strategic priorities
prìomhachasan ro-innleachdail

WE HAVE SET FIVE AMBITIOUS STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
FOR THE 2012-15 PERIOD, WHICH ARE THE MAIN DRIVER 
FOR ALL OUR OPERATIONS.

• CHAMPIONING SCOTLAND’S HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT 

• CONTRIBUTING TO SUSTAINABLE ECONOMIC GROWTH 

• MANAGING SCOTLAND’S HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT CREATIVELY 

• SUPPORTING THE TRANSITION TO A LOW CARBON ECONOMY 

• DELIVERING OUR BUSINESS 

Stirling Castle.
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case studies
sgrùdaidhean cùise

The traditional lime kiln at 
Castlebay on Barra. Schoolchildren 
participated in events and 
education activities organised 
by Historic Scotland around the 
building and lighting of the kiln to 
produce mortar.

Commercial and Tourism Events

Commercial and Tourism Membership

Commercial and Tourism Marketing

Conservation Traditional skills apprentices

Conservation Energy efficiency

Conservation Insight events

Heritage Management Historic MPAs

Heritage Management Antonine Wall

Finance Building Repair Grants

C&T and Conservation Iona Abbey investment

Gaelic Interpretation work
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Case Study    Events

Costumed 
children promote 
the Road To 
Bannockburn 
event at Stirling 
Castle.

Living history 
event and battle 
at Linlithgow 
Palace.

Historic Scotland’s annual events 
programme offers members 
and visitors an opportunity to 
engage with Scotland’s heritage 
in authentic and creative ways. 

Highlights of 2013-14 included 
Celebrations of the Centuries at 
Fort George, and events at Stirling 
Castle to mark the anniversary 
of the Battle of Flodden and the 
Road to Bannockburn. Record 

numbers attended Spectacular 
Jousting at Linlithgow Palace, 
and the Fragments Project at 
the Borders Abbeys combined 
music and art inspired by a 
fragment of medieval music. 

An Arts & Humanities Research 
Council-funded partnership with 
academic partners resulted in the 
first full performances of The Satire 
of the Three Estates in over 460 years. 

Large events increase visitors 
and attract positive PR, but 
smaller projects can add value 
to a visit and help support 
local partnerships, like our 
community event at Rothesay 
Castle and our living history 
performances. Ultimately, events 
are about more than visitor 
numbers – they’re also about a 
quality experience, and telling 
the stories we’re here to tell. 

Case Study    Membership 

Contents of the 
Historic Scotland 
Membership pack.

2013-14 saw Historic Scotland membership reach an all-time 
high of more than 140,200. That’s partly due to retention rates of 
almost 86%, but it’s also thanks to the efforts of our membership 
and marketing teams, and the expertise of our stewards. 

Direct Debit has helped make membership an easily-affordable 
option. Benefits like shop and café discounts, a 60-page quarterly 
magazine, and exceptional customer service encourage members 
to stay.

We keep them engaged through regular communications. As well as 
the quarterly magazine, they receive a yearly 100-page handbook, 
giving them the information they need to plan visits. We also 
communicate via social media – Facebook, Twitter and blog. 

Around 60% of new memberships are sold by our stewards. The 
remaining 40% are sold online. Special offers like membership as 
a Christmas gift help encourage uptake.  

The continued growth of our membership figures 
shows that the product is working. It’s excellent value 
for money, and helps attract visitors to our sites.

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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Case Study    Marketing

An event at 
Edinburgh Castle 
called ‘Burns for 
Beginners’ – 
a light-hearted 
introduction to 
Robert Burns, 
and some of 
his works.

Marketing is a vital part of our activities. 
It encourages visitors to sites and events 
and supports income generation. 

Bringing visitors in during peak times is a 
major part of the programme. However, we 
also focus on off-season marketing, to keep a 
regular flow of visitors throughout the year. 

Last Christmas, for example, saw a series of events 
across the country. We held a Christmas shopping 
fayre at Stirling Castle, as well as a festive family event 

and an evening carol concert. Duff House created 
a Santa’s Grotto, and welcomed local children. And 
Edinburgh Castle, in addition to its year-round living 
history programme, staged A Dickens Christmas, with 
costumed performers bringing A Christmas Carol to life. 

Off-season marketing focuses on giving people 
a reason to visit during traditionally quiet 
times. Working across a range of media, we 
present interesting tales, quirky facts and 
special events. The result is increased visits and 
greater engagement with Scotland’s heritage.

Case Study    Traditional skills apprentices

Detail of wood 
carved by Clarke 
Tait, joiner and 
Historic Scotland 
Apprentice of the 
Year, St Anne’s 
Maltings, Croft-
an-Righ.

To truly support Scotland’s heritage sector, Historic 
Scotland must ensure that the traditional skills needed 
for maintenance and conservation are supported too.

The Scottish Government’s Traditional Skills strategy 
aims to develop and sustain trades like carpentry, 
painting, and stonemasonry. It helps us increase our 
work on developing ways to teach traditional skills. The 
desired result is that this kind of expertise will be readily 
available across Scotland for many years to come. 

That’s not only an important contribution to the 
country’s economy, it’s a long-term investment 
in our estate. The skills we teach will be vital to 
its ongoing preservation in years to come.

Part of the strategy involves an ongoing apprenticeship 
programme. Through it, we bring young people into 
four-year training programmes in traditional trades.

2013-14 saw 18 young people join our 
apprenticeship programme. That’s the highest-
ever number in a single year, and demonstrates 
strongly that our strategy is proving successful. 



Case Study    Energy efficiency

Thermal imaging 
in April 2013 
helped us identify 
areas of heat loss 
at the Palace of 
Holyroodhouse so 
that they could be 
investigated.
Sheep’s wool 
insulation 
installed in 2011 
helped reduce 
energy demand 
this year.

The Scottish Government has set ambitious 
Climate Change targets. As a large public body, 
it’s vital that we play our part in meeting them.

Energy use on the Estate represents 61% of our 
carbon footprint. One of our key performance 
targets for 2013-14 was to reduce consumption 
by 8% against the baseline year of 2008-09. In fact, 
we managed a total reduction of 16%, through 
ongoing fabric and technological improvements 
and Climate Change Awareness Training for staff.

A great example of this is the Palace of 
Holyroodhouse, where we achieved a 20% reduction 
in energy use. The Palace continues to benefit 
from the heating system and insulation work 
carried out in previous years, as well as ongoing 
fabric improvements. This year, these included 
window refurbishment and pipe lagging.

Reducing energy use has an obvious financial 
benefit, but it also helps achieve the ambitious 
national targets we must all contribute to.

CASE STUDIES
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An aerial 
display from a 
WWII  Spitfire 
during Historic 
Scotland’s 
Celebration of the 
Centuries event 
(10-11 August 
2013).

Case Study    Insight events 

Providing a consistently high quality visitor 
experience across our estate is one of our 
key priorities. As we’ve already seen, some of 
those experiences are drawn from the creative 
inspiration offered by our sites – living history 
performances, or battle recreations, for example.

Equally important – and equally popular – are the 
events that offer visitors a more practical insight 
into our work. They give visitors an up close and 
personal look at how our teams operate. 

Such events not only raise our profile, they also 
showcase how we look after the properties 
in our care. They’re hosted by architects, 
archaeologists, conservation units – in short, 
the teams whose job it is, day-to-day, to look 
after the physical maintenance of our estate. 

Last year saw a number of these insight events 
selling out within 24 hours of going on sale. These 
included a roof level tour of the stunning stonework 
at Glasgow Cathedral led by Historic Scotland’s 
District Architect, attended by 47 people including 
building professionals, students and members 
of the public. Other tours included South Gyle 
Conservation Centre, Sunnybrae Cottage, Balvenie 
Castle, Clackmannan Tower, Dunkeld Cathedral and 
Stirling Castle. Visitor feedback tells us how much 
our audiences enjoy this closer look at our work.

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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Case Study    Antonine Wall management plan 

Bar Hill, a fort 
and camp on the 
Antonine Wall.

The five year management plan for the Antonine Wall 
World Heritage Site was launched in December 2013. 
Critical to guiding the conservation and management 
of the site, it covers its future management, access, 
protection, interpretation and promotion.

With six Scottish and two international partners 
involved, including five local authorities, the plan 
unifies the strategic and operational planning approach. 
It highlights key priorities, actions and spend. 

If the plan is to be effective, it has to work for all parties. 
Historic Scotland has staged public meetings in each 
local authority area and has undertaken two consultation 
sessions with staff from key stakeholder organisations.

The process has been labour intensive, but it has ensured 
a partnership approach and a plan agreed by all parties. 
It has also identified a ‘wish list’ of aspirational projects 
and outcomes for future consideration. That forms, in 
effect, the groundwork for the next five-year plan.

Case Study    Historic Marine Protected Areas

Marine wreck that 
was inspected 
during a trip to 
Islay to schedule a 
number of Pictish 
monuments, duns 
and forts.

2013-14 saw the introduction of a new designation 
protecting Scotland’s marine heritage sites. Historic 
Marine Protected Areas (MPAs) replaced the use 
of the Protection of Wrecks Act in Scotland. 

The previous legislation was seen as too restrictive. 
It required visitors to apply for a licence to 
visit every designated shipwreck in Scotland’s 
seas. The new legislation is more targeted and 
flexible, minimising consents for sea-users. 

We worked with partners across the Scottish 
Government to develop the MPA network. The 

first tranche of designations was completed in 
November 2013, and there are now seven in 
force. These protect wrecks like the Scottish 
warship Swan, sunk during an attack in the Sound 
of Mull by Cromwellian forces in 1653, and HMS 
Campania – a liner converted into an aircraft 
carrier, lost off Burntisland in November 1918. 

The new system is designed to ensure our 
most important marine heritage sites are 
protected, while allowing greater opportunities 
for access to our underwater heritage. 
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Case Study    Building repair grants

Paisley Grand 
Fountain.

Interior detail 
at Hospitalfield 
House which has 
been awarded 
£500,000 by 
Historic Scotland, 
as part of the 
Building Repairs 
Grants scheme.

Historic Scotland exceeded its grant funding target 
for 2013-14, investing £16.86 million in Scotland’s 
historic environment. Building repair grants are a key 
element of that funding.

Projects in the last year included a £135,327 grant 
to Renfrewshire Council, supporting an interpretation 
and restoration project for the A-listed Paisley Grand 
Fountain and its surrounding park.

The fountain and its park are one of a kind. Our grant, 
alongside a contribution from the Heritage Lottery 
Fund, supported the council’s investment. The 

project, which included full community involvement, 
restored the fountain to full working order.

In Dumfries, our funding of £225,762 contributed 
to phase one of the Moat Brae project. The house 
– and particularly the gardens – inspired JM Barrie’s 
‘Peter Pan’. The overall project will re-invent the 
grounds and transform the house into a National 
Centre for Children’s Literature and Storytelling.

Without our support, many such projects would not 
be possible, and some of Scotland’s most important 
historic buildings would inevitably be lost.

Case Study    Iona Abbey

The St John’s 
Cross mounted 
inside the site 
museum.

2013 marked 1450 years since St Columba’s 
arrival on Iona, as well as the 75th anniversary 
of the Iona Community. Our project 
delivered an enhanced visitor experience 
at Iona Abbey in this anniversary year. 

The £750k investment created new facilities, 
including the redisplay of the museum’s carved 
stone and artefact collection. It also allowed the 
creation of a sustainable timber building, acting 
as a visitor orientation and reception point. 

Telling the story from Columba’s time to the 
founding of the Iona Community, the museum 
features the most important collection of early 
Christian sculptures in Britain and Ireland. 
The newly-reassembled St Oran’s and St 
Matthew’s High Crosses are the centrepiece.

New signage and a multi-language audio 
tour guide visitors around the museum. A 
new display in the Chapter House shows the 
Abbey restoration by the Iona Community. 

The project, together with new research into the 
history and archaeology of Iona, has created a 
deeper understanding of Scotland’s most sacred site.

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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Case Study    Gaelic thesaurus 

Historic 
Scotland’s project 
to create a Gaelic 
learning resource 
for young visitors 
to Stirling Castle 
was launched by 
students from 
Wallace High 
School. 

Sgrùdadh cùise    Co-fhaclair Gàidhlig

An open Gaelic 
book in the White 
House at no. 39 
Arnol, Lewis.

An robh fhios agad gu bheil barrachd Gàidhlig a-nis 
ga sgrìobhadh na bha riamh roimhe? Mar thoradh air 
sin, tha e a’ sìor fhàs nas cudromaich gum bi cothrom 
aig luchd-labhairt is luchd-ionnsachaidh a’ chànain 
air briathrachas airson cuspairean speisealach 
is teicnigeach agus barrachd foillseachaidhean, 
eadar-theangachaidhean, làraichean-lìn agus 
susbaint sna meadhanan sòisealta a-nis againn sa 
Ghàidhlig air farsaingeachd mhòr de chuspairean.

Air an adhbhar seo, tha Alba Aosmhor agus RCHAMS 
air co-phròiseact a chur air dòigh gus co-fhaclair 
de bhriathrachas Gàidhlig co-cheangailte ris an 
àrainneachd eachdraidheil a chruthachadh le 
taic airgid bhon Bhòrd na Gàidhlig.  A bharrachd 
air teirmichean co-cheangailte ri eachdraidh, 
àrc-eòlas agus ailtireachd, tha na h-ainmean 
Gàidhlig ann airson làraichean Alba Aosmhor.

Tha an co-fhaclair stèidhichte air susbaint bhon 
stòr-dàta Canmore aig RCHAMS agus tha còrr 
is 4,000 teirmichean ann. Chan eil e gu diofar a 
bheil thu a’ lorg ‘abaid’ no ’uamh’, lorgaidh tu e, le 
mìneachadh Gàidhlig na chois, sa cho-fhaclair againn. 

Gheibhear an co-fhaclair aig: 
http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/gaelic-thesaurus

It is a little known fact that more Gaelic is written 
now than ever before in history. As more and 
more publications, websites, social media 
posts and translations in Gaelic cover an ever-
expanding range of subjects, it is important that 
speakers and learners have access to vocabulary 
for technical and specialist subjects. 

For this reason, Historic Scotland and RCAHMS 
have developed a joint project to create a Gaelic 
thesaurus of historical environment terminology with 
financial support from Bòrd na Gàidhlig. This not only 
contains Gaelic terms relating to areas such as history, 
archaeology and architecture but also the Gaelic 
versions of the names of Historic Scotland properties. 

The thesaurus is based on content from the 
RCAHMS Canmore database and contains over 
4,000 terms. Whether you want to know the 
Gaelic for abbey or zinc works, you can find it, 
along with a Gaelic definition, in our thesaurus. 

The thesaurus is available at: 
http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/gaelic-thesaurus

http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/gaelic-thesaurus
http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/gaelic-thesaurus
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Aberdeenshire
£10,320

Moray
£42,448

Argyll & Bute
£12,255

Perth & 
Kinross
£92,850

Scottish 
Borders
£2,500

East
Dunbartonshire

£13,200

Orkney Islands

Eilean Siar
(Western Isles)

£81,445

Highland
£75,400

City of Edinburgh
£10,550

£178,929

Dumfries & Galloway
£17,835

Glasgow
£16,425

North Ayrshire
£12,500

South 
Lanarkshire

£3,000

North Lanarkshire
£9,710

Stirling
£2,080

Falkirk
£200

ARCHAEOLOGICAL  PROGRAMME GRANTS
Archaeological excavations, surveys and other projects supported in 2013-14

GRANTAICHEAN ANNS A’ PHRÒGRAM ÀRC-EÒLAIS
Cladhach àrc-eòlais, suirbhidhean, agus pròiseactan eile ris an deach taic a thoirt an 2013-14 

Total grants offered  £1,370,965

Scotland-wide projects £789,318

For a full breakdown of projects in each region please go to 
http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/corporatereports

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/corporatereports


GRANTS 2013-2014

22        Historic Scotland    Annual Report 2013-14

Argyll  
& Bute

£103,232

Highland
£6,500

East Lothian
£31,760

Falkirk
£4,770

East 
Renfrewshire

£67,951

ANCIENT MONUMENT GRANTS IN 2013-14
GRANTAICHEAN AIRSON CARRAIGHEAN ÀRSAIDH AN 2013-14

Total grants offered  £253,529

Scotland-wide projects £39,316

For a full breakdown of projects in each region please go to 
http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/corporatereports

http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/corporatereports
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South 
Lanarkshire

£70,802

Dumfries & Galloway
£225,769

Shetland Islands
£97,105

Glasgow City
£667,328

Midlothian
£400,000

Highland
£146,789 

 

Eilean Siar
(Western Isles)

£27,422

Stirling
£18,149

Aberdeenshire
£6,855

Renfrewshire
£135,327

Argyll  
& Bute

£221,890

Moray
£8,139

North Ayrshire
£45,314

East Ayrshire
£417,006

HISTORIC BUILDING REPAIR GRANTS IN 2013-14
GRANTAICHEAN CÀRAIDH AIRSON TOGLAICHEAN 
EACHDRAIDHEIL AN 2013-14

Total grants offered  £2,487,895

For a full breakdown of projects in each region please go to 
http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/corporatereports

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/corporatereports
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Strategic Report

ACCOUNTS DIRECTION

The Accounts have been prepared in accordance with a Direction given by the Scottish 
Ministers in pursuance of the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000. 

HISTORY AND STATUTORY BACKGROUND

Historic Scotland is an Agency of the Scottish Government. An independent review of its functions and 
structure in 2003-04 confirmed Historic Scotland’s status as an executive Agency.  The Agency is headed by 
the Chief Executive who is directly accountable to the Scottish Ministers.

The main acts under which the Agency operates are The Historic Buildings and Ancient Monuments Act 1953, 
The Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Act 1979, The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
(Scotland) Act 1997, The Planning (Etc.) Scotland Act 2006, The Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 
2005 and The Historic Environment (Amendment) (Scotland) Act 2011.

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

Historic Scotland is an Agency of the Scottish Government with wide-ranging responsibilities for the 
historic environment. 

Our role is to undertake, on behalf of Scottish Ministers, statutory functions to protect and promote the 
historic environment. We also act as a leader and enabler to ensure that the historic environment delivers 
economic, social, cultural and environment benefits for Scotland. We do this through historic environment 
legislation, our people, our partners and our combined financial resources. 

Historic Scotland manages 345 of Scotland’s most important properties on behalf of Scottish Ministers: from 
Edinburgh Castle to Skara Brae in Orkney; from the standing stones at Calanais in the Western Isles to Stanley 
Mills in Perthshire.  

The Agency is currently in a transitional phase as we move towards a shared future with the Royal Commission 
on the Ancient and Historical Monuments of Scotland (RCAHMS).

An outline business case for the merger of the two bodies was published in May 2013 as part of a joint 
consultation on the historic environment strategy for Scotland and the proposed merger. The business case 
proposed the establishment of a new Non Departmental Public Body (NDPB). The consultation lasted from 
8 May 2013 until 31 July 2013 and the results of it can be found at
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2013/11/2642

In July 2013 responsibility for historic environment policy was transferred from Historic Scotland to the 
Scottish Government. The policy staff were transferred to a new Historic Environment Policy Unit (HEPU) 
reporting to the Director of Culture and Heritage.

Annual Report

http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2013/11/2642
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March 2014 saw the introduction of the Historic Environment Scotland Bill to the Scottish Parliament. The 
Bill provides for the creation of Historic Environment Scotland, a new NDPB which will play a key role in 
delivering the first ever Historic Environment Strategy for Scotland – http://www.scotland.gov.uk/
Publications/2014/03/8522. Combining the functions of Historic Scotland and RCAHMS, the new body will 
lead on building effective partnerships with organisations across the sector to ensure quality outcomes 
which benefit our historic environment and the people of Scotland.

SOME OF OUR KEY ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2013-14

2013-14 was a good year for the Agency overall. Benefiting from a good summer and an increase in visitor 
numbers to Scotland. We secured a 12% increase in earned income within the year, achieving a total of 
£36.3 million. This is an increase on the previous year’s income from £32.3 million. Earned income now 
contributes over two fifths of the Agency’s funding. All of the income we generate is re-invested directly 
into Scotland’s historic environment.

We continued to build on our membership numbers and in 2013-14 we hit an all-time high of 
140,217 members.  

We are committed to delivering a high quality experience for our visitors and this was recognised in 2013-14 
with Edinburgh Castle being voted the Best UK heritage attraction at the British Travel Awards for the third 
year in a row. Edinburgh Castle also retained its position as Scotland’s number one paid-for tourist attraction 
with over 1.4 million visitors in 2013 as confirmed by the Association of Leading Visitor Attractions.

May 2013 saw Historic Scotland complete a project that has placed significant investment in Iona Abbey to 
refresh the visitor experience. Visitors to the site are able to enjoy the improved interpretation, an upgraded 
ticketing facility and a new exhibition devoted to the most important collection of early Christian sculptures 
in Britain and Ireland. The project coincided with two special celebrations being marked on the island – the 
1450th anniversary of St Columba’s arrival and the 75th anniversary of the founding of the Iona community.

Historic Scotland has a key role to play in being a world leader in conservation and traditional skills and we 
have made significant steps towards creating a new National Conservation Centre (NCC) in Stirling. In August 
we received initial backing from the Heritage Lottery Fund, which along with potential funding from the Young 
Scots Fund will allow us to proceed with construction. Once complete the NCC will provide a focus for 
research and education of traditional skills and materials. 

During the year Historic Scotland was recognised for our skills in this area with a Special Mention Certificate at 
the 2013 Europa Nostra Awards. The award was for carrying out important research into energy efficiency in 
traditional and historic buildings. The four year project was a joint effort between Historic Scotland, the 
National Trust for Scotland, Social Landlords and several academic bodies.

We also took on 18 new traditional skills apprentices, the largest single intake in our history. The group 
included 15 stonemasons, two electricians and one joiner. This brought the total to around 60 construction 
apprentices in training making Historic Scotland one of the largest trainers of traditional crafts in Scotland 
and the UK.

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2014/03/8522
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2014/03/8522
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We have also made significant progress on a number of key projects over the course of 2013-14:

The programme to deliver the representation of Bannockburn by 2014 with the National Trust for Scotland 
was completed ahead of schedule and on budget.  The new visitor centre was officially opened on March 1st 
2014, three months ahead of the 700th anniversary date of the battle. The centre contains cutting edge 
technology that brings the battle to life in 3D allowing visitors to recreate the historic event and even “meet” 
individuals from the battle.

The Scottish Ten project completed scanning the Sydney Opera House in Australia during 2013-14. Work is 
now under way on digitally documenting the Old and New Towns of Edinburgh as well as the last Scottish Site 
in the project , the Antoine Wall. The outcomes from this work have far exceeded our aims to develop our 
conservation expertise, supporting the wider international and cultural ambitions of the Scottish Government. 
http://www.scottishten.org/

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Historic Scotland continues to monitor and identify key risks which it faces.

Significant risks include: 

• Reduced income due to falling visitor numbers.

• Demand pressure on the grants budget.

Details of the Risk management arrangements can be found within the Governance Report (Page 21).

OUR PERFORMANCE AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE TARGETS

In line with Historic Scotland’s Framework Document 2012, the main basis for judging the performance 
of the Agency towards the delivery of the strategic priorities set out in the Corporate Plan is through 
the achievement of annual Key Performance Targets set and agreed by Scottish Ministers.

For the second year of the Corporate Plan, we agreed with Scottish Ministers an ambitious set of 
fourteen Key Performance Targets to be delivered within a period of difficult economic conditions and 
a reduced grant from Scottish Government.  To achieve these targets, the Agency focussed on its core 
purpose, strategic priorities and key commitments set out in the Corporate Plan and adapted its ways 
of working to deliver more for Scotland’s historic environment using less government funding.    

Performance against all the targets was encouraging in 2013-14. We have successfully met or exceeded 
all of our key targets. 

http://www.scottishten.org
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POSITION AT END OF YEAR

The Historic Scotland budget is approved by the Scottish Parliament and covers both revenue and capital 
expenditure.  Scottish Government budget for the year was £45.304 million (£41.993 million cash funding 
and £3.311 million in Capital Charges) and the Agency achieved a final outturn of £42.192 million (Note 29). 

 

2013-14 2012-13

£000 £000

Total income generated (note 2/3) 38,194 33,746

Budget granted from  Scottish Government 45,304 47,346

83,498 81,092

Total budget expenditure (note 29) 80,386 81,226

Budget Under/(Over) spend 3,112 (134)

Included in the net budget position of the £3.112m underspend is the non-utilisation of a Capital Charge 
allocation of £1.205m. This is a non-cash allocation. The balance of the reported underspend of £1.862m 
related to a capital budget underspend resulting from one major capital project in particular which was subject 
to delays beyond the control of the Agency. There was a minor resource operational underspend of £0.045m.      

INDICATION OF LIKELY FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The Scottish Government set out its spending plan until 2015. This will mean a drop in direct 
government funding from £45.3 million in 2013-14 to £37.8 million in 2014-15 and £40.8 million 
in 2015-16 for the Agency. 

Despite this challenging position we are confident that with a continued strong performance in our 
commercial and tourism activities, together with creative and appropriate development of new commercial 
activities  and a clear focus on driving costs down, we can deliver an ambitious agenda for the historic 
environment and Scotland’s wider economy.  

2014-15 will see Scotland become the centre of worldwide attention with a range of events which include 
the Commonwealth Games, The Ryder Cup and the MTV Music Awards. 

Historic Scotland is delighted to be part of Homecoming Scotland 2014 and will be celebrating with a 
range of events and exhibitions across the country. 

Other notable highlights within 2014-15 include events commemorating the 700th anniversary of 
Bannockburn and the 100th anniversary of the outbreak of World War I.

2014-15 will see the Agency continue in it transitional steps towards a shared future with the RCAHMS. 

The Scottish Government’s Historic Environment Bill, introduced on 3 March 2014, proposes the merger 
of the two bodies. Its main provisions deal with the establishment of a new Non-Departmental Public 
Body, Historic Environment Scotland. It is anticipated that the Bill will complete its passage through 
Parliament by the end of 2014. The expectation is that the new body will start-up in a two-step process:

• Chair and Board appointed by April 2015;

• Six months later the new body takes on its full set of functions, including transfer of staff and assets 
(October 2015).

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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EMPLOYMENT BREAKDOWN

It is our people in Historic Scotland who are the key to unlocking the potential of Scotland’s unique historic 
environment. We have a talented, resourceful, innovative and skilled workforce of approximately 1,153 staff 
distributed across Scotland. We deliver a broad remit covering tourism, conservation and development, while 
also improving the understanding of the historic environment.  We are a multi-disciplinary organisation, 
with specialists in many areas including, archaeology, history, architecture, conservation & maintenance, 
engineering, surveying, tourism, planning, project management, finance and human resources . Our people 
are key to our continued success in delivering our objectives for Government and in championing Scotland’s 
historic environment.  As at 31 March 2014 the breakdown of Gender in Historic Scotland was as follows:

Male Female

Directors 5 4

Senior Managers – –

Employees 683 461

688 465

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

Our strategic priorities are firmly aligned to the Government’s Purpose, Strategic Priorities and National 
Performance Framework. We contribute directly to all of Scottish Government’s National Outcomes. The 
five strategic properties are:

• Championing Scotland’s historic environment;

• Contributing to Sustainable Economic Growth;

• Managing Scotland’s Historic Environment Creatively;

• Supporting the Transition to a Low Carbon Economy;

• Delivering the Business.

Details of our strategic priorities and key commitments over the spending review period are set out in our 
Corporate Plan 2012-15 (http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/index/about/corporatereports/corporateplan.htm).

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS AND SOCIAL AND COMMUNITY ISSUES

Historic Scotland’s core work of protecting and enhancing the historic environment makes a significant 
contribution to sustainable development and regeneration. 

The Agency participates in the Green Tourism Business Scheme, under which it holds 37 gold and 31 silver 
awards. 

SUSTAINABILITY

In March 2012, Historic Scotland published a Climate Change Action Plan, which sets out the Agency’s approach 
over the next five years to the challenges and opportunities presented by climate change to the historic 
environment. Complementing the Carbon Management Plan, the Climate Change Action Plan identifies seven 
key themes to be addressed through forty-two specific actions, and articulates the Agency’s wider intentions 
to increase resilience and help prepare the broader historic environment  for a future changing climate.

http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/index/about/corporatereports/corporateplan.htm


HISTORIC SCOTLAND ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2013-14

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk            07

In line with public sector sustainability reporting guidance, issued by the Scottish Government in January 2012, 
Historic Scotland has produced a Sustainability Report to accompany its Annual Report of 2013-14. The purpose of 
this report is to influence improved performance management in relation to sustainability, through transparency 
and accountability. In accordance with the guidance, the following areas are included within Historic Scotland’s 
Sustainability report:

• Scope 1, 2, and 3 greenhouse gas emissions from building energy use and business travel;

• Waste minimisation and management for various types of waste;

• Water consumption across Historic Scotland’s estate;

• Action on biodiversity; and

• Sustainable procurement.

These topics, with the exception of biodiversity and sustainable procurement, provide high level financial 
and non-financial indicators which are accompanied with commentary on targets, direct and indirect 
business impacts. 

IAN WALFORD

Chief Executive

05 Aug 2014

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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Directors Report

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Agency’s principal activities are to protect, present and promote Scotland’s historic environment, which 
includes ancient monuments and archaeological sites; historic buildings, parks and gardens; and designed 
landscapes.  

Historic Scotland contributes towards many of the national outcomes of the Scottish Government but in 
particular to the national outcome ‘We value and enjoy our built and natural environment and protect it and 
enhance it for future generations.’

As of July 2010, Historic Scotland became the official sponsoring body for The Royal Commission on the 
Ancient and Historical Monuments of Scotland (RCAHMS). RCAHMS is responsible for recording, interpreting 
and collecting information about the built environment. In July 2013 the Sponsorship was to the new Historic 
Environment Policy Unit (HEPU) at the Scottish Government.

THE DIRECTORS

The directors and senior management of the Agency during 2013-14 were:

Ian Walford Chief Executive

Stephen Duncan Director, Commercial & Tourism 

David Mitchell Director, Conservation 

Andrew Fleming Director, Policy (to 22/07/2013) 

Barbara Cummins Director, Heritage Management 

Gary Love Director, Human Resources 

Myriam Madden Director, Finance 

Lisa Nicholson Director, Communications 

Jennie Smith IT Programme Director

From July 2013, seven members of RCAHMS directors and senior management were invited to participate 
in a Joint Senior Management Team to foster closer working in the lead up to the merger. Remuneration 
for these members are not covered by Historic Scotland and are determined by RCAHMS. 

The Chief Executive is a member of the Senior Civil Service, and his remuneration is 
determined under the terms of Section 5.3.6 of the Civil Service Management Code. The other 
Senior Management Team members have their remuneration determined under Historic 
Scotland’s own arrangements which are negotiated separately and which are consistent 
with the Agency’s own business needs and Government policy on Civil Service pay.

Additional information on salary and pension entitlements can be found in the Remuneration Report.

None of the directors held any company directorships or other significant interests which 
may have conflicted with their management responsibilities during the year.
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PENSIONS

As civil servants, employees of Historic Scotland are members of the Principal Civil Service Pension 
Scheme.  Details of the scheme can be found in Note 5 to the Accounts and the Remuneration Report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

There were no charitable donations exceeding £200 in aggregate (2012-13: Nil).

SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICY

The Agency complies with the Confederation of British Industry’s Prompt Payers Code, where payment is made 
within 30 days of receipt of invoices.

In addition, the First Minister told Parliament in October 2008 that “this Government will aspire to the 10 day 
target of paying the bills of small businesses around Scotland”. Historic Scotland aspires to achieve this target 
for all companies.

For goods and services completed to the satisfaction of the Agency 99% of invoices for goods and services from 
suppliers were paid within the 30 day credit period in 2012-13 (97% in 2012-13) and 92% were paid within the 
10 day period in 2013-14 (83% in 2012-13).

 

IMPORTANT EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE YEAR END

There were no material events occurring after the year end which had a bearing on the accounts.

AUDITORS

The accounts are audited by KPMG LLP, who were appointed by the Auditor General for Scotland.  Further 
details on audit remuneration can be found in Note 28 to the Accounts.

EMPLOYMENT RECRUITMENT

Recruitment campaigns undertaken by Historic Scotland were carried out on the basis of fair and open 
competition, selection on merit and in accordance with the guidance laid down by the Civil Service 
Commissioners.  The Agency’s recruitment/selection records are subject to regular scrutiny by internal auditors 
and the auditors of the Civil Service Commissioners.  Details of recruitment in 2013-14 and 2012-13 are as follows:

Pay Band Number of Posts Male Female

2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13

Up to £16,464 84 81 46 38 38 43

£17,913 - £20,673 17 25 11 12 6 13

£21,707 - £28,166 6 15 2 3 4 12

£29,584 - £34,714 6 6 4 2 2 4

£36,450 - £42,240 3 1 3 1 0 0

Over £44,352 0 1 0 0 0 1

Total 116 129 66 56 50 73

% 100% 100% 57% 44% 43% 56%
 

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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EMPLOYEES WITH DISABILITIES

Historic Scotland is committed to equality of opportunity for all its employees.  We recognise that people 
with disabilities have the same range of skills and qualities as non-disabled people.  It is important that full 
advantage is taken of these skills so that every person is given the opportunity to make the fullest 
contribution in line with their abilities.  Applications from people with disabilities for employment or 
promotion are given full and fair consideration.  Where an employee becomes disabled, Historic Scotland 
will re-train and re-deploy wherever applicable.  

Having carried out a Data Cleansing exercise with employees in 2009 and the introduction of self service in 
2011, the average number of self declared disabled people employed in the year was 15 (2012-13: 15).

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES AND DIVERSITY

Historic Scotland is committed to equality of opportunity for all its employees and customers, and to 
treating every member of staff and every customer with dignity and respect.  It is the Agency’s policy to 
ensure that all staff are able to work in an environment free from discrimination, harassment and bullying.

As an Agency of the Scottish Government, Historic Scotland fully subscribes to the Government’s Race 
Equality Scheme, Disability Scheme and the Gender Equality Scheme.  As an organisation, we continue to 
develop structures and systems to ensure that equal opportunities becomes an integral part of our 
thinking and behaviour.

STAFF RELATIONS

Management and the Trade Union Alliance (TUA) of Historic Scotland are committed to working in a spirit 
of trust, openness and integrity as partners in all matters relating to the general welfare, terms, conditions 
and working practices of staff.   The partnership will promote openness through discussion and sharing of 
information to reach, where possible, a common view to achieve its goals in an organisation that works 
together, learns from others, makes best use of resources, and values its people. It is the shared aim of both 
partners to provide a public service that earns respect and trust, is open, in touch and responsive, and 
promotes the interests of Scotland and its historic environment.

The Partnership agreement was signed in 2010-11 which will be the basis for all discussion going forward.
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SICKNESS ABSENCE

Historic Scotland accepts that employees will be prevented from attending work due to illness or injury 
from time to time. Although the Agency recognises that employees need to be properly supported during 
absences, our priority is to meet our operational objectives.  As a result, we take distinct steps to balance 
the needs of the individual with the needs of the Agency and to effectively manage sickness absence.  To 
achieve this balance, we take a positive and pro-active approach to attendance management including:

• Advising all employees and line managers of their roles and responsibilities 
through appropriate training, guidance and support;

• Monitoring and analysing absence and providing useful Management Information;

• Supporting employees with regular short term absence to improve their level of attendance; and

• Assisting employees on long term absence to return to work successfully at the 
earliest opportunity via individually tailored return to work plans.

In 2013-14, an average of 6.1 days (including leavers) were lost per staff year. (8.3 in 2012-13).

PERSONAL DATA RELATED INCIDENTS

Section 417 of the Companies Act 2006 requires that organisations report on personal data related 
incidents.  In 2013-14, we had 2 reported potential losses of sensitive data. Investigations have indicated 
that no sensitive data was lost during any of these incidents.

• One loss of HS data being sent by a third party via personal email.

• One loss of a scribe pen containing restricted material.

EMPLOYEE CONSULTATION

The Agency is committed to effective employee communications, which it maintains through all staff notices, 
the staff newsletter and briefing sessions.  The Partnership Board provides the means for representatives of 
staff and management to discuss matters of concern or mutual interest.  It has delegated detailed 
consideration of partnership issues to the joint Management/Union Partnership Board. 

DISCLOSURE OF RELEVANT AUDIT INFORMATION

As Accountable Officer, I am not aware of any relevant audit information of which our auditors 
are unaware.  I have taken all necessary steps to ensure that I myself am aware of any relevant 
audit information and to establish that the auditors are also aware of this information.

IAN WALFORD

Chief Executive

05 Aug 2014

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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Historic Scotland remuneration report

PART 1: UNAUDITED INFORMATION

Remuneration policy

Historic Scotland’s Chief Executive is a member of the Senior Civil Service.

The remuneration of Senior Civil Servants is set by the Prime Minister following independent advice 
from the Review Body on Senior Salaries.  

In reaching its recommendations, the Review Body has regard to the following considerations:

• the need to recruit, retain and motivate suitably able and qualified people to exercise their 
different responsibilities;

• regional/local variations in labour markets and their effects on the recruitment and retention of staff;

• Government policies for improving the public services including the requirement on departments 
to meet the output targets for the delivery of departmental services;

• the funds available to departments as set out in the Government’s departmental expenditure limits; and

• the Government’s inflation target.

The Review Body takes account of the evidence it receives about wider economic considerations and the 
affordability of its recommendations.

Further information about the work of the Review Body can be found at www.ome.uk.com

The remuneration of Historic Scotland’s non-executive directors is set by Scottish Ministers taking 
into account their roles and responsibilities and remuneration levels in comparable organisations.

Service Contracts 

The Constitutional Reform and Governance Act 2010 requires Civil Service appointments to be made 
on merit on the basis of fair and open competition. The Recruitment Principles published by the Civil 
Service Commission specify the circumstances when appointments may be made otherwise.

Unless otherwise stated below, the officials covered by this report hold appointments which are 
open-ended.  Early termination, other than for misconduct, would result in the individual receiving 
compensation as set out in the Civil Service Compensation Scheme.

Further information about the work of the Civil Service Commissioners can be found at 
http://civilservicecommission.independent.gov.uk

www.ome.uk.com
http://civilservicecommission.independent.gov.uk
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PART 2: AUDITED INFORMATION

Salaries

Salary and pension entitlements of the Historic Scotland Senior Management Team members were as follows:

Name and title Salary 
(£000)

Bonus Payments 
(£000)

Benefits in Kind 
(to nearest £100)

Pension Benefits 
(£000)

Total 
(£000)

2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13

Ruth Parsons
Chief Executive 
(To 31/08/2012)

– 35-40
(90-95
full year 

equivalent)

- - - - - - - 35-40

Ian Walford
Chief Executive *

75-80 70-75 - - - - 5 7 80-85 75-80

 

Stephen Duncan
Director, Commercial & Tourism

65-70 70-75 - - - - 22 27 85-90 95-100

David Mitchell 
Director, Conservation 

65-70 70-75 - - - - 17 14 80-85 85-90

Andrew Fleming
Director of  Policy 
(To 22/07/2013) 

30-35
(65-70
full year 

equivalent)

65-70 - - - - 16 11 45-50
(80-85
full year 

equivalent)

75-80

Barbara Cummins
Director of  Heritage Management 

60-65 55-60 - - - - 21 25 80-85 80-85

Gary Love
Director, Human Resources and IT

60-65 55-60 - - - - 35 51 95-100 105-110

Lisa Nicholson
Director of Communications

55-60 55-60 - - - - 20 22 75-80 75-80

Myriam Madden
Director, Finance

60-65 50-55 - - - - 22 21 80-85 70-75

Jennie Smith
IT Programme Director
(From 01/05/2013)

45-50 - - - - - 15 - 60-65 
(60-65
full year 

equivalent)

-
(45-50
full year 

equivalent)

Paul Smart
Head of Programme Delivery
(From 06/05/2013)

60-65
(65-70
full year 

equivalent)

- - - - - 4 - 65-70
(70-75
full year 

equivalent)

-

 

Pay Median 2013-14 2012-13 

Band of highest paid director  75-80 70-75
Total Remuneration (£000s)  

Median Total Remuneration 20,673 20,373 

Ratio 3.65 3.56 

* Ian Walford was Chief Operating Officer until 31/08/2012 when he took up the post of Chief Executive. 

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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Salary

‘Salary’ includes gross salary, performance pay and overtime.  Amounts relate to Historic Scotland employment 
only and do not include any other earnings from positions elsewhere in the civil service.

Benefits in kind

The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits provided by the employer and treated by HM 
Revenue and Customs as a taxable emolument.  In 2013-14 this value was Nil (2012-13  Nil).

Bonuses

Bonuses are based on performance levels attained and are made as part of the appraisal process. Bonuses 
relate to the performance in the year in which they become payable to the individual. The bonuses reported 
in 2013-14 relate to the performance in 2013-14 and the comparative bonuses reported for 2012-13 relate 
to the performance in 2012-13.

Pay Median

Reporting bodies are now required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest-paid 
director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in Historic Scotland in the financial year 2013-14 was 
£75-80k (2012-13 £70-75k). This was 3.65 times (2012-13 3.56) the median remuneration of the workforce, 
which was £20,673 (2012-13 £20,373).

In 2013-14, nil (2012-13, nil) employees received remuneration in excess of the highest-paid director. 
Remuneration ranged from £11,000 to £75,000 (2012-13 £14,000 - £80,000).

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, benefits-in-kind as well as 
severance payments. It does not include employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer 
value of pensions.

The change in the ratio is due to the pay award.

Compensation for loss of office

No employees left under Compulsory Early Retirement in the year 2013-14.



HISTORIC SCOTLAND ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2013-14

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk            15

PENSION BENEFITS

 *  Opted for Premium

 **  Opted for Novus

 ***  Lump Sum related to preserved award

Details of pensions and Cash Equivalent Transfer Values are disclosed based on 
information supplied by the Department for Work and Pensions.

Name and title Accrued pension 
at pension age 

as at 31-3-14 and 
related lump sum

Real increase 
in pension and 

related lump sum 
at pension age

CETV at 
31-03-14

CETV at 
31-03-13

Real increase 
in CETV

Employer 
contribution 

to partnership 
pension 
account

Ian Walford 
Chief Executive

25-30 plus
75-80 lump sum

0-2.5 plus
2.5-5 lump sum

446 416 3 Nil

Stephen Duncan** 
Director, 
Commercial & Tourism

20-25 0-2.5 252 224 12 Nil

David Mitchell* 
Director, Conservation 

15-20 0-2.5 193 169 9 Nil

Andrew Fleming 
Director of  Policy 
(To 22/07/2013)

20-25 plus  
60-65 lump sum

0-2.5 plus
2.5-5 lump sum

344 323 16 Nil

Barbara Cummins**
Director of  
Heritage Management

5-10 0-2.5 74 56 10 Nil

Gary Love
Director, Human 
Resources and IT

25-30 plus
80-85 lump sum

0-2.5 plus
5-10 lump sum

466 412 26 Nil

Myriam Madden**
Director, Finance 

0-5 0-2.5 29 13 10 Nil

Lisa Nicholson**
Director of Communications 

5-10 0-2.5 53 41 5 Nil

Jennie Smith*** 
IT Programme Director
(From 01/05/2013)

5-10 plus
5-10 lump sum

0-2.5 plus
0-2.5 lump sum

120 102 9 Nil

Paul Smart
Head of Programme Delivery
(From 06/05/2013)

20-25 plus
70-75 lump sum

0-2.5 plus
0-2.5 lump sum

482 450 4 Nil

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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Civil Service Pensions

Pension benefits are provided through the Civil Service pension arrangements. From 30 July 2007, civil 
servants may be in one of four defined benefit schemes; either a final salary scheme (classic, premium or 
classic plus); or a whole career scheme (nuvos).  These statutory arrangements are unfunded with the 
cost of benefits met by monies voted by Parliament each year.  Pensions payable under classic, premium, 
classic plus and nuvos are increased annually in line with Pensions Increase legislation.  Members joining 
from October 2002 may opt for either the appropriate defined benefit arrangement or a  ‘money 
purchase’ stakeholder pension with an employer contribution (partnership pension account).

Employee contributions are salary-related and range between 1.5% and 6.25% of pensionable earnings 
for classic and 3.5% and 8.25% for premium, classic plus and nuvos. Increases to employee contributions 
will apply from 1 April 2014.  Benefits in classic accrue at the rate of 1/80th of final pensionable earnings 
for each year of service.  In addition, a lump sum equivalent to three years initial pension is payable on 
retirement.  For premium, benefits accrue at the rate of 1/60th of final pensionable earnings for each 
year of service.  Unlike classic, there is no automatic lump sum.  Classic plus is essentially a hybrid with 
benefits for service before 1 October 2002 calculated broadly as per classic and benefits for service from 
October 2002 worked out as in premium. In nuvos a member builds up a pension based on his pensionable 
earnings during their period of scheme membership. At the end of the scheme year (31 March) the 
member’s earned pension account is credited with 2.3% of their pensionable earnings in that scheme 
year and the accrued pension is uprated in line with Pension Increase legislation. In all cases members 
may opt to give up (commute) pension for a lump sum up to the limits set by the Finance Act 2004.

The partnership pension account is a stakeholder pension arrangement.  The employer makes a basic 
contribution of between 3% and 12.5% (depending on the age of the member) into a stakeholder pension 
product chosen by the employee from a panel of three providers.  The employee does not have to contribute, 
but where they do make contributions, the employer will match these up to a limit of 3% of pensionable salary 
(in addition to the employer’s basic contribution).  Employers also contribute a further 0.8% of pensionable 
salary to cover the cost of centrally-provided risk benefit cover (death in service and ill health retirement).

The accrued pension quoted is the pension the member is entitled to receive when they reach pension 
age, or immediately on ceasing to be an active member of the scheme if they are already at or over pension 
age. Pension age is 60 for members of classic, premium and classic plus and 65 for members of nuvos.

Further details about the Civil Service pension arrangements can be found at the website 
http://www.civilservice.gov.uk/pensions

http://www.civilservice.gov.uk/pensions
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Cash Equivalent Transfer Values

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme 
benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time.  The benefits valued are the member’s accrued 
benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme.  A CETV is a payment made by a 
pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement 
when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The 
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total 
membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies.

The figures include the value of any pension benefit in another scheme or arrangement which the member 
has transferred to the Civil Service pension arrangements. They also include any  additional pension benefit 
accrued to the member as a result of their buying additional pension benefits at their own cost. CETVs are 
worked out in accordance with The Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Values) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2008 and do not take account of any actual or potential reduction to benefits resulting from 
Lifetime Allowance Tax which may be due when pension benefits are taken.

Real increase in CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer.  It does not include the increase in accrued 
pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred 
from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and 
end of the period.

IAN WALFORD

Chief Executive

05 Aug 2014

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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Statement of Agency’s and Chief Executive’s responsibilities

Under section 19 of the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 the Scottish Ministers have 
directed Historic Scotland to prepare a statement of accounts for each financial year in conformity with the 
accounts direction on page 57 of these financial statements, detailing the resources acquired, held, or 
disposed of during the year and the use of resources by the Agency during the year.

The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the Agency’s state of 
affairs at the year end and of its income and expenditure, changes in taxpayers’ equity and cash flows for the 
financial year.

The Principal Accountable Officer of the Scottish Government appointed the Chief Executive of Historic 
Scotland as the Accountable Officer for the Agency. As Accountable Officer, the Chief Executive is 
responsible to the Scottish Ministers.

In preparing the accounts the accountable officer is required to comply with the Scottish Public Finance 
Manual, and in particular to:

• observe the accounts direction issued by Scottish Ministers, including the relevant accounting 
and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;

• make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

• state whether applicable accounting standards, as set out in the Government Financial Reporting Manual, 
have been followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial statements; and

• prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 
Agency will continue in operation.

The Scottish Government has appointed the Chief Executive as Accounting Officer of Historic Scotland. 
The responsibilities of the Accountable Officer, including responsibility for the propriety and regularity of 
the public finances for which the Accountable Officer is answerable, for keeping proper records and for 
safeguarding the Agency’s assets, are set out in the Memorandum to accountable officers from the 
Principal Accountable Officer. 
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Governance Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2014

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As accountable officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that 
supports the achievement of Historic Scotland’s strategic priorities, set by the Scottish Ministers, whilst 
safeguarding the public funds and assets for which I am personally responsible, in accordance with the 
responsibilities assigned to me.

As accountable officer, I am personally answerable to the Scottish Parliament in accordance with section 
15 of the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000. I am responsible for the propriety and 
regularity of financial transactions under my control and for the economical, efficient and effective use of 
resources provided to the Agency, for ensuring that arrangements have been made to secure best value and 
for signing the Agency’s annual accounts. I am also responsible for providing the necessary assurances to 
the Principal Accountable Officer to enable them to sign the Governance Statement contained within the 
Scottish Government consolidated accounts. I have responsibility for ensuring that effective management 
systems are in place within the Agency and that all risks are identified, assessed and managed appropriately.

The Scottish Public Finance Manual (SPFM) is issued by the Scottish Ministers to provide guidance to 
the Scottish Government and other relevant bodies on the proper handling of public funds. It is mainly 
designed to ensure compliance with statutory and parliamentary requirements, promote value for money 
and high standards of propriety, and secure effective accountability and good systems of internal control.

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Historic Scotland is an executive Agency of the Scottish Government. All functions performed by the 
Agency are carried out on behalf of Scottish Ministers. The Agency’s Chief Executive (Ian Walford) is head 
of the Agency and is responsible to the Scottish Ministers. Further information on the mission and aims of 
Historic Scotland and the role of the Scottish Ministers and the Chief Executive is set out in the Agency’s 
Framework Document. 

At the start of the year the Senior Management Team supported the Chief Executive in discharging his 
duties under the Framework Document. The Senior Management Team met fortnightly and was chaired 
by the Chief Executive. It comprised the eight executive members of the Agency’s senior management 
team including the Chief Executive. 

As part of the upcoming merger it was decided, in July 2013, to help develop the organisational structure 
for the new body and foster closer working. Diana Murray, Chief Executive of RCAHMS, would be seconded 
on a part time temporary basis to the Agency as Joint Chief Executive. Ian Walford was seconded to 
RCAHMS on the same basis. 

The Joint Chief Executives chair a Joint Senior Management Team comprising senior staff from Historic 
Scotland and RCAHMS. The Joint SMT receives regular reports on the merger programme, monitors 
progress with the delivery of commitments across both organisations and considers major strategic 
decisions required to ensure continued delivery. The Joint Senior Management Team meets fortnightly.

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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During this time Ian Walford remained as sole Accountable Officer for Historic Scotland while Diana Murray 
remained as Accountable Officer for RCAHMS.

A Transition Programme was established to ensure an effective transition to the new body, Historic 
Environment Scotland. The Programme, which consists of a number of projects and work streams, is overseen 
by a Programme Board and a Transition Advisory Board (TAB). The TAB provide constructive advice and support 
to the Programme.

It is chaired by the Director of Culture and Heritage Aileen McKechnie, and consists of six non-executive members 
as well as joint CEOs, Diana Murray and Ian Walford.

An Advisory Committee has been advising the Chief Executive and has provided challenge, support and advice 
on the overall vision and strategic direction of the Agency. The Committee comprises the Historic Scotland 
Senior Management Team and a number of Non-Executive Members. The Non-Executive Directors have been 
meeting every six months with the Director of Culture and Heritage, Aileen McKechnie, and Ian Walford. In 
addition several Non-Executive Advisors continue to provide regular advice on major initiatives, which the 
Agency is engaged upon.

The Joint Senior Management Team and Accountable Officer are also supported by an Audit and Risk 
Committee which provides constructive challenge on issues of risk, control and governance and associated 
assurance through a process of constructive challenge. 

The Audit and Risk Committee meets on a quarterly basis to discuss all areas of risk, control and governance 
as well as plan the activities of both internal and external audits. The Committee reports to the Accountable 
Officer and the Joint Senior Management Team on the effectiveness of the internal control environment. 

Membership of the Audit and Risk Committee comprised three external members.

Members during the year to 31 March 2014 were: 

David McGibbon  Chairman 

Robert Stewart

Iain Scott 

THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

The system of governance is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than eliminate all risk of 
failure to achieve the Agency’s strategic priorities. It can therefore only provide reasonable, and not absolute, 
assurance of effectiveness.

The system of governance is based on an ongoing process designed to identify the principal risks to the 
achievement of the Agency’s strategic priorities; to evaluate the nature and extent of those risks and to 
manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The process within Historic Scotland accords with the SPFM and has been in place for the year ended 
31 March 2014 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts and accords with 
guidance from the Scottish Ministers.
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RISK ASSESSMENT

All bodies subject to the requirements of the SPFM must operate a risk management strategy in accordance 
with relevant guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers. The general principles for a successful risk management 
strategy are set out in the SPFM.

An Agency risk register is in operation which details the most significant risks for the delivery of the Agency’s 
strategic priorities. This register is reviewed quarterly. In addition, each group within the Agency has compiled 
a register of risks to the delivery of the priorities specific to their area which is regularly reviewed by the group. 

The results of each review are presented quarterly to Historic Scotland’s Joint Senior Management Team and 
are also reviewed quarterly by the Historic Scotland Audit and Risk Committee. A revised risk management 
approach based on HM Treasury guidance was introduced in 2012-13 providing assurance on the business 
through improved processes for the identification, collation, escalation and reporting of risks.

RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

Historic Scotland’s Audit and Risk Committee receive reports from the Director of Finance, Scottish 
Government Internal Audit and KPMG on behalf of Audit Scotland concerning internal control issues 
and recommendations and are notified of actions to be taken to address any issues or weaknesses 
identified. The Audit and Risk Committee also consider the adequacy of arrangements for the 
assessment and management of risk and the adequacy of arrangements for corporate governance.

More generally, Historic Scotland is committed to best value and a process of continuous improvement: 
developing systems in response to any relevant reviews and developments in best practice in this area. 

To support continuous improvement within the Agency the Business Improvement Office was set up in 
2010-11 to ensure the Agency’s strategic objectives are at the heart of its programmes and projects. The 
office is responsible for keeping guidelines and templates up to date, supporting the directorates with 
programme and project management matters, collating and disseminating lessons learned and facilitating 
the Business Improvement Board which assesses project appraisals.

Historic Scotland is engaged in the implementation of an IT Strategy which is Agency wide and consists of 
interconnected projects that work in conjunction with the Building for Success Programme. The Information 
Governance Programme which collectively deals with information risk, data handling, business continuity, 
information, records, document management and security is in line with the IT implementation examining in 
detail Historic Scotland’s:

• Information Classification.

• Data Handling and Security.

• Service Plans.

• Shared Initiatives.

• Information, Records and Document Management.

• Information Communication Technology.

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

As accountable officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of governance. 
My review is informed by:

• the managers within the Agency who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the 
internal control framework;

• the work of the internal auditors, who submit to the Agency’s Audit and Risk Committee regular reports 
which include the Head of Internal Audit’s independent and objective opinion on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Agency’s systems of internal control together with recommendations for improvement;

• the Audit and Risk Committee which oversees the work of the internal auditors; and

• comments made by the external auditors in their management letter and other reports.

Appropriate action is in place to address any weaknesses identified and to ensure the continuous 
improvement of the system.

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES

There were no significant issues raised in 2013-14.

IAN WALFORD

Chief Executive

05 Aug 2014
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Independent auditor’s report to Historic Scotland, 
the Auditor General for Scotland and the Scottish Parliament

We have audited the financial statements of Historic Scotland for the year ended 31 March 2014 set 
out on pages 25 to 57.  The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 
is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European 
Union, and as interpreted and adapted by the Government Financial Reporting Manual 2013-14. 

This report is made solely to Historic Scotland and to the Auditor General for Scotland in accordance 
with sections 21 and 22 of the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000.  Our audit work 
has been undertaken so that we might state to those two parties those matters we are required to state 
to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.  In accordance with the Code of Audit Practice 
approved by the Auditor General for Scotland, this report is also made to the Scottish Parliament, as a body.  
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than 
Historic Scotland and the Auditor General for Scotland, for this report, or the opinions we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER AND AUDITOR

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Agency’s and Chief Executive’s responsibilities set out on 
page 18, the Accountable Officer is responsible for the preparation of financial statements and for being 
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the 
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and 
Ireland) as required by the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Auditor General for Scotland.  Those 
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements 
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, 
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are 
appropriate to the body’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Accountable Officer; and the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information 
in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and 
to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent 
with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any 
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In our opinion the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the state of the body’s affairs as at 31 March 2014 and of its net operating 
cost for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as 
adopted by the European Union, as interpreted and adapted by the Government Financial Reporting 
Manual 2013-14; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Public Finance and Accountability 
(Scotland) Act 2000 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Ministers.  

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO HISTORIC SCOTLAND, 
THE AUDITOR GENERAL FOR SCOTLAND AND THE SCOTTISH PARLIAMENT CONTINUED:

OPINION ON REGULARITY PRESCRIBED BY THE PUBLIC FINANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (SCOTLAND) ACT 2000

In our opinion in all material respects: 

• the expenditure and income in the financial statements were incurred or applied in accordance with any 
applicable enactments and guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers, the Budget (Scotland) Act covering 
the financial year and sections 4 to 7 of the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000; and 

• the sums paid out of the Scottish Consolidated Fund for the purpose of meeting the expenditure shown 
in the financial statements were applied in accordance with section 65 of the Scotland Act 1998. 

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE PUBLIC FINANCE 
AND ACCOUNTABILITY (SCOTLAND) ACT 2000

In our opinion: 

• the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with 
the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and directions made thereunder by the 
Scottish Ministers; and 

• the information given in the strategic report and directors’ report for the financial year for which the 
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Public Finance and 
Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

• adequate accounting records have not been kept; or 

• the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not 
in agreement with the accounting records; or 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or 

• the Governance Statement does not comply with guidance from the Scottish Ministers. 

DAVID WATT

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

Saltire Court

20 Castle Terrace

Edinburgh

EH1 2EG

08 Aug 2014
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Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure 
for the year ended 31 March 2014
 Note 2013-14 2012-13
  £000 £000

Income    

Income from commercial & tourism 2 36,337 32,272

Other income 3 1,857 1,474

  38,194 33,746

   

Expenditure    

Policy 6 424 903

Heritage Management 7 3,734 3,748

Investments 8 17,514 19,580

Conservation 9 24,524 23,932

Commercial & Tourism 10 21,298 20,970

Central services 11 9,481 9,382

Depreciation and impairment charges 13(iii) 2,105 2,128

  79,080 80,643

   

Net operating cost before Scottish Government funding  (40,886) (46,897)

   

Other Comprehensive Expenditure 

  2013-14 2012-13
  £000 £000

Items that will not be reclassified to net operating costs:

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of Property Plant and Equipment  2,948 987

  2,948 987

 

Total Comprehensive Expenditure   (37,938) (45,910)
for the year ended 31 March 2014 

   

The notes on pages 29 to 58 form part of these accounts.

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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Statement of Financial Position  
as at 31 March 2014
 Note 2013-14 2012-13
  £000 £000

Non-current assets    

Property, plant and equipment 13 30,734 28,305

Intangible assets 14 282 557

Heritage Assets 15 361 361

Total non-current assets  31,377 29,223

   
Current assets   

Inventories 16 1,806 1,743

Trade and other receivables 17 2,822 2,283

Cash and cash equivalents 18 2,400 1,249

Total current assets  7,028 5,275
   
Total Assets  38,405 34,498

   
Current Liabilities   

Trade and other payables 19 18,052 16,616

Provisions 20 399 451

Total current liabilities  18,451 17,067

   
Non-current assets plus/less net current assets/liabilities  19,954 17,431

   
Non-current liabilities   

Other payables   19 261 533

Provisions  20 132 246

Total non-current liabilities  393 779

   
Assets less liabilities  19,561 16,652

   
Taxpayers’ equity   

General fund  3,166 3,153

Revaluation reserve  16,395 13,499

Total taxpayers’ equity  19,561 16,652

 

IAN WALFORD

Chief Executive

05 Aug 2014
The Accountable Officer authorised these financial 

statements for issue on 05 August 2014
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Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 31 March 2014
 Note 2013-14  2012-13
  £000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities    

Net operating cost before Scottish Government funding  (40,886) (46,897)
   
Adjustments for non-cash items   

Notional charges 28 197 220

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment   13(iii) 2,105 2,128 

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  28 (5)

Receivables  adjustment  – (26)

Movements in working capital   

(Increase)/decrease in inventories 16 (63) 226

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 17 (537) 263

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables* 19 13 (115)

Movements in provisions   

Increase/(decrease) in provisions 20 (166) 34

   

Net cash outflow from operating activities  (39,309) (44,172)

   

Cash flows from investing activities   

   

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 13 (1,564) (793)

Purchase of intangible assets 14 - (6)

Proceeds of disposal of property, plant and equipment  31 5

Proceeds of disposal of intangibles   

Net cash outflow from investing activities  (1,533) (794)
   
Cash flows from financing activities   
   
Scottish Government funding for year  40,842 44,966

Movement on Scottish Government funding (receivable)/payable  1,151 (931)

Scottish Government cash funding for year  41,993 44,035

   

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  1,151 (931)
   
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 April 2012 18 1,249 2,180

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2013 18 2,400 1,249

* Excluding Balance with Scottish Government

The notes on pages 29 to 58 form part of these accounts.
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Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity  
for the year ended 31 March 2014
 Note General Fund  Revaluation Total Reserves 
  (Restated)  Reserve 
  £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2012  4,848 12,554 17,402

    

Funding from the Scottish Government  44,966 – 44,966

Comprehensive Expenditure for the year  (45,910) – (45,910)
    
Non Cash Adjustments    

Sales Ledger Adjustment  (26) – (26)

Non-cash charges – auditor’s remuneration 28 71 – 71

Non-cash charges – Departmental overhead 28 149 – 149

   
Transfers between Reserves     

Transfers between reserves –   42 (42) –
Realised element of revaluation reserve  

Recognised in Statement of   (987) 987 –
Comprehensive Net Expenditure

    

Balance at 31 March 2013  3,153 13,499 16,652
    

Funding from the Scottish Government  40,842 – 40,842

Comprehensive Expenditure for the year  (37,938) – (37,938)

    

Non Cash Adjustments    

Non-cash charges – auditor’s remuneration 28 67 – 67

Non-cash charges – Departmental overhead 28 130 – 130

Non-cash charges – adjustment of property,   (192) – (192)
plant and equipment    

    
Transfers between Reserves     

Transfers between reserves –   52 (52) –
Realised element of revaluation reserve  

Recognised in Statement of   (2,948) 2,948 –
Comprehensive Expenditure   

Balance at 31 March 2014  3,166 16,395 19,561

The notes on pages 29 to 58 form part of these accounts.
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Notes to the accounts   

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the 2013-14 Government Financial Reporting 
Manual (FReM) issued by HM Treasury.  The accounting policies contained in the manual follow generally 
accepted accounting practices (GAAP) as defined in International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
as adopted by the European Union and the Companies Act 2006 to the extent that it is meaningful and 
appropriate in the public sector context. The accounting policies adopted are described below.  They 
have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts. 

(a) Going Concern

These accounts have been prepared on a Going Concern Basis. Management feel that this is appropriate due to 
the continued funding and support from the Scottish Government. Funding has been agreed for both 2014-15 
and 2015-16 (indicative funding for both Historic Scotland and RCAHMS in the year of transformation).

(b) Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and, where material, current asset 
investments and inventories to fair value as determined by the relevant accounting standard. 

(c) Changes in accounting policy 

There has been no significant changes in accounting policy during 2013-14.

The following Adopted IFRSs have been issued but have not been applied in these accounts. Their adoption 
is not expected to have a material effect on the financial statements unless otherwise indicated:

• IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements 
 (mandatory for year commencing on or after 1 January 2014).

• IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and Amendments to IAS 28 (2008) Investments in Associates 
and Joint Ventures (mandatory for year commencing on or after 1 January 2014). 

• IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
 (mandatory for year commencing on or after 1 January 2014). 

• Amendments to IAS 32 ‘Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’ 
(mandatory for year commencing on or after 1 January 2014). 

• Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27) 
(mandatory for year commencing on or after 1 January 2014). 

• Transition Guidance (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12) 
(mandatory for year commencing on or after 1 January 2014).

(d) Income and expenditure 

Income which includes receipts from visitor admission charges, retail sales and subscriptions is accounted 
for net of Value Added Tax. Income from the Friends of Historic Scotland is accounted for on a cash 
basis net of Value Added Tax.  Expenditure is shown net of Value Added Tax where it is recoverable.
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(e) Grants payable

Grants are paid to individuals and bodies by the Agency in accordance with its statutory powers 
and duties.  They are accounted for in the period in which the underlying activity, to which the 
grant relates, is carried out.  Any element of a grant where the offer has been made but the 
underlying activity falls outwith the accounting period is quantified in capital commitments.

(f) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

All of the feuhold property comprising the non-monument estate is the subject of a 5 year rolling 
programme of professional valuations in accordance with International Accounting Standard 16.  
Approximately 20% of the estate is valued each year by District Valuers (DV) of the Valuation Office 
acting in the capacity of External Valuers.  For this report valuations have been prepared by DVs as 
at 31 March 2014 on the undernoted basis in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual 
of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.  These valuations are updated annually by Historic 
Scotland using appropriate indices and, following valuation, the remaining life may be restated.

Plant and machinery, which would normally be regarded as an integral part of the properties 
and essential for their effective use, have been included in the valuations.

With four exceptions all of the non-monument properties are regarded by Historic Scotland as operational and 
have been stated at fair value based, on the Market Value for existing use, on the assumption that the property 
is sold as part of the continuing enterprise in occupation.  Three assets have been defined as specialised 
properties and have been valued on the basis of Depreciated Replacement Cost.  One asset is leased to a 
third party and has been valued on the basis of Open Market Value. Residential properties have been valued 
on the assumption that they are subject to assured tenancies in terms of the Housing (Scotland) Act 1988.

The sources of information and assumptions made in producing the various valuations are set 
out in the Valuation Certificate which is not published in the Annual Report and Accounts.

The valuation figures incorporated in the Annual Report and Accounts are the aggregate of separate valuations 
of parts of the portfolio, not a valuation or apportioned valuation of the portfolio valued as a whole.

The feuhold property comprising of the monument estate is not included in the rolling programme of 
valuations as it would be impossible to obtain a reliable valuation for these, and Historic Scotland has 
included these at nil value. 

Expenditure of a capital nature incurred in pursuance of the Agency’s commercial activities on works integral 
to the fabric of the historic sites is initially identified as assets under construction within the Property, Plant and 
Equipment note.  Thereafter it is transferred to the relevant asset category.  Similar works of a non-commercial 
nature are written off in the year of expenditure. 

Land related to operational assets is capitalised where it can be clearly separated from the heritage asset. 

Depreciated historic cost has been used as a proxy for the current value of motor vehicles and  plant and 
machinery. All of the assets in these categories have:

1.  low values and  short useful economic lives which realistically reflect the life of the asset; and 

2.  a depreciation charge which provides a realistic reflection of  Consumption.
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Computer equipment is stated at Depreciated historic cost. Multiple purchases of identical assets may be 
grouped to meet the capitalisation threshold.

Works of art, which are new works and have only recently been completed, have been included at cost. Once 
the assets reach more than five years of age, they will be subject to professional valuation and their value 
amended accordingly.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to Historic Scotland and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure during the financial 
year in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation thresholds for the principal categories of assets are: 

Land  £10,000

Buildings and dwellings £10,000

Plant and motor vehicles £5,000

Office equipment £5,000

Computer equipment £1,000

Development costs £5,000

Antiques and works of art (non-heritage) £5,000

(g) Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment, excluding historical assets and archives, on a 
straight line basis at rates sufficient to write down their cost over their estimated useful lives. The depreciation 
periods for the principal categories of assets are:

Land Not depreciated

Buildings and dwellings On an individual basis not exceeding 60 years

Plant and motor vehicles 5 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computer equipment 3 years 

Development costs & intangible assets On an individual basis not exceeding 7 years

Antiques and works of art  (non-heritage) Up to 60 years 

Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use.  Archives, which 
comprise maps, plans, photographs and books, are not depreciated, as the annual costs incurred in their 
maintenance and updating are sufficient to maintain their value.

Additions to historic collections are not depreciated as the length of their anticipated useful economic life 
is such that depreciation is not considered to be material.
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 (h) Assets held for sale

A property is derecognised and held for sale under IFRS 5 when all the following requirements are met:

• It is available for immediate sale;

• A plan is in place, supported by management, and steps have been taken to conclude sale; and

• It is actively marketed and there is an expectation that the sale will be made in less than 12 months.

Assets held for sale include assets where Historic Scotland intends and expects to sell within one year 
from the date of classification of held for sale. Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower 
of their carrying amounts immediately prior to their classification as held for sale and their fair value 
less costs to sell. Assets classified as held for sale are not subject to depreciation or amortisation.

(i) Donated assets

Donated property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt. The funding 
element is recognised as income and taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. 
Subsequent revaluations are taken to the revaluation reserve. 

(j) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are valued initially at cost and subsequently at fair value using the revaluation model.

Where an active market does not exist, income generating assets are valued at the lower of depreciated 
replacement cost and value in use. Non income generating assets are carried at depreciated replacement 
cost. These valuation methods are considered to be a proxy for fair value.

Future economic benefit has been used as the criteria in assessing whether an intangible asset meets the 
definition and recognition criteria of IAS 38 where assets do not generate income. IAS 38 defines future 
economic benefit as ‘revenue from the sale of products or services, cost savings or other benefits resulting 
from the use of the asset by the entity’.

(k) Heritage assets

Heritage Assets are defined as tangible items with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical 
or environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge 
and culture.

Historic Scotland is responsible for 345 archaeological and historic sites across Scotland in the care of 
Scottish Ministers.  The majority of these are treated as non-operational heritage assets in that they are 
held primarily for the maintenance of the nation’s heritage.  

Assets treated as non-operational Heritage fall within the following categories:
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Crown Properties
There are thirty five Crown properties of which eight are buildings in good condition with the structure 
essentially complete.  

It is the opinion of the Accountable Officer that owing to the incomparable nature of the monuments that 
the valuation of these sites lack reliability and involves cost that are likely to be onerous on Historic 
Scotland. As a result no value is reported for these assets in the Agency’s Statement of Financial Position.

Other Properties
The remaining properties include archaeological sites, burial mounds, ruins, monuments or statues.  

Many of these monuments are cared for by Historic Scotland, but are not owned by the Scottish Ministers. 
They are being held under a guardianship arrangement.  Title to the property remains with the original owner.

It is the opinion of the Accountable Officer that owing to the incomparable nature of the monuments that 
the valuation of these sites lack reliability. As a result no value is reported for these assets in the Agency’s 
Statement of Financial Position.

Collections
The Agency has a collection of nearly 30,000 objects in its care which includes archaeological artefacts, 
paintings, ancient weapons and furnishings.  

It is the opinion of the Accountable Officer that due to the number of items, lack of comparative 
market values and the diverse nature of the collection, reliable cost or valuation information cannot be 
obtained. The Agency does not therefore recognise these assets on its Statement of Financial Position, 
other than recent acquisitions, where the object is purchased, which are reported at cost (Note 15).

Conservation Costs
Expenditure which is required to conserve and maintain Heritage Assets, in line with Agency responsibility 
to protect and enhance the historic environment, is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net 
Expenditure when it is incurred.

Further information is given in Notes 15 and 30 to the accounts.

(l) Realised element on depreciation of revaluation reserve

Depreciation is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure on the revalued amount of the 
relevant assets.  An element of the depreciation arises from the increase in valuation and is in excess of the 
depreciation that would be charged on the historic cost of the relevant assets.  The amount relating to this 
excess is the realised gain on revaluation and is transferred from the revaluation reserve to the general fund.

(m)  Inventories

All inventories held are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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(n) Pension costs

Past and present employees of Historic Scotland are covered by the provisions of the Principal Civil Service 
Pension Scheme (PCSPS) which are described in the remuneration report. Full superannuation costs are an 
expense of Historic Scotland at rates determined by HM Treasury.

(o) Early departure costs

Historic Scotland is required to meet the additional costs of benefits beyond the normal PCSPS 
benefits in respect of employees who retire early. The Agency provides in full for these costs when the 
early retirement has been agreed.

(p)  Leases

Where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a leased property are borne by the entity, it 
is recorded as a non-current asset and a corresponding creditor recorded in respect of debt due to the 
lessor, with the interest element of the finance lease payment charged to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Net Expenditure. 

Rentals payable in respect of operating leases will be charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net 
Expenditure on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

(q)  Changes in estimation techniques

There have been no material changes in estimation techniques which were introduced in 2013-14.
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2. INCOME FROM COMMERCIAL & TOURISM

 2013-14 2012-13 
 £000 £000

Admissions 26,526 23,003

Turnover from trading sales  7,483 6,983

Functions 1,174 1,266

Fees from hire of facilities 990 870

Rental Income 164 150

 36,337 32,272

3. OTHER INCOME

 2013-14 2012-13 
 £000 £000

Conservation work 77 –

Funding from the Heritage Lottery Fund 436 229

Partnership Funding 178 64

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 31 –

Recharged Costs 376 520

Other  676 566

Grant Recoveries 83 95

 1,857 1,474
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4. COMMERCIAL TRADING ACCOUNT

 2013-14 2012-13 
 £000 £000

Income from commercial & tourism (note 2) 36,337 32,272

  

Less Direct Costs  

Cost of goods sold 3,558 3,388

Visitor services 10,769 11,167

Marketing 2,191 1,982

Purchasing 699 815

Functions and events 13 42

Membership 607 581

Interpretation 2,755 2,403

Education 943 758

Direct expenditure on commercial & tourism 21,535 21,136

  

Accommodation 1,663 1,739

Central services 4,867 4,184

Depreciation 1,329 1,274

Notional charges 109 109

Total expenditure on commercial & tourism 29,503 28,442

  

Net profit 6,834 3,830

This note complies with guidance in the Scottish Public Finance Manual which requires 
disclosure of the income and expenditure relating to commercial activities.

HS charges for admission and operates other commercial activities at its properties in care. 
The figures above do not include any conservation expenditure that is directly related to  the 
presentation and upkeep of sites where there is commercial activity, although an allocation of 
net contribution supports those activities.

Indirect expenditure on commercial and tourism includes an apportionment of some overheads 
from cross - organisational services.
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5. STAFF NUMBERS AND RELATED COSTS

(i) Staff costs

Staff costs consist of:
 2013-14 2012-13 
 £000 £000

Salaries and wages 25,982 25,940

Social security costs 1,746 1,680

Superannuation 4,114 4,137

Early departure costs 329 554

Agency/temporary staff costs 265 242

Total staff costs 32,436 32,553

  

Less: Recoveries in respect of outward secondments (97) (57)

Total net employment costs 32,339 32,496

The Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS) is an unfunded multi-employer defined benefit 
scheme but Historic Scotland is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities. 
The scheme actuary valued the scheme as at 31 March 2007. You can find details in the resource 
accounts of the Cabinet Office: Civil Superannuation (www.civilservice.gov.uk/pensions).

For 2013-14, employers’ contributions of £4,114,496 were payable to the PCSPS 

(2012-13 £4,059,487) at one of four rates in the range 16.7% to 24.3% of pensionable pay, based 
on salary bands. The Scheme Actuary reviews employer contributions usually every four years 
following a full scheme valuation.  

The contribution rates are set to meet the cost of the benefits accruing during 2013-14 to be paid 
when the member retires and not the benefits paid during this period to existing pensioners.

Employees can opt to open a partnership pension account, a stakeholder pension with an 
employer contribution. Employers’ contributions of £90,767 were paid to one or more of 
the panel of three appointed stakeholder pension providers. Employer contributions are age 
related and range from 3% to 12.5% of pensionable pay.  Employers also match employee 
contributions up to 3% of pensionable pay.  In addition, employer contributions of £6,183, 
0.8% of pensionable pay, were payable to the PCSPS to cover the cost of the future provision 
of lump sum benefits on death in service or ill health retirement of these employees.

Contributions due to the partnership pension providers at the balance sheet date were £7,092. 
Contributions prepaid at that date were £nil

No employees retired early on ill health grounds in 2013-2014.

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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(ii)  Average number of employees

The average number of whole-time equivalent persons employed during the year by occupational group was:

 2013-14 2012-13 
 Number of  Number of 
 Employees Employees

Senior management 9 8

Policy Staff 20 44

Heritage Management Staff 67 54

Investments Staff 8 8

Conservation Staff 392 380

Commercial & Tourism Staff 439 447

Central Services Staff 112 118

Agency/temporary staff 8 8

 1,055 1,067

 

(iii) Reporting of Civil Service and other compensation schemes – exit packages

Exit package cost band Number of Compulsory 
redundancies

Number of other 
departures agreed *

Total number of exit 
packages by cost 

band (total cost) *

<£10,000 – 2 (3) 2 (3)

£10,000–£25,000 – 2 (7) 2 (7)

£25,000-£50,000 – 4 (7) 4 (7)

£50,000-£100,000 – 1 (1) 1 (1)

£100,000-£150,000 – – (–) – (–)

£150,000-£200,000 – – (–) – (–)

£200,000-£250,000 – – (–) – (–)

£250,000-£300,000 – – (1) – (1)

Total Number of 
exit packages by 
type (total cost)

– 9 (19) 9 (19)

Total resource cost – £293,200 
(£786,153)

£293,200 
(£786,153)

* Comparative data is shown (in brackets) for previous year

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the Civil Service 
Compensation Scheme, a statutory scheme made under the Superannuation Act 1972. Exit costs are 
accounted for in full in the year of departure.  Where the department has agreed early retirements, the 
additional costs are met by the department and not by the Civil Service pension scheme.  Ill-health retirement 
costs are met by the pension scheme and are not included in the table.
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6. POLICY
 2013-14 2012-13 
 £000 £000

Policy & Legislation 424 903

 424 903

The above costs for 2013-14 reflect the costs to 22 July 2013 at which point the Strategic 
Policy function transferred back to within the Scottish Government. This was as a result of 
the policy review and strategy development discussions.

7. HERITAGE MANAGEMENT
 2013-14 2012-13 
 £000 £000

Heritage Management North 497 502

Heritage Management East 506 530

Heritage Management West 544 551

Listings 465 468

Scheduling & Marine 547 603

Battlefields & Historic Land Use 298 276

Strategic Development 877 818

 3,734 3,748

8. INVESTMENTS
 2013-14 2012-13 
 £000 £000

Grants 17,514 19,580

 17,514 19,580

The 2013-14 total includes a grant, approved by Scottish Ministers, of £0.5 m to the Historic 
Scotland Foundation.

9. CONSERVATION
 2013-14 2012-13 
 £000 £000

Conservation – South 5,046 4,676

Conservation – Central 4,377 4,390

Conservation – North 4,509 4,284

Conservation – Edinburgh 5,119 5,203

Collections 681 642

Sustainability & Science 2,064 2,236

Specialist Services 698 839

Survey & Applied Conservation 708 711

Traditional Skills 1,322 951

 24,524 23,932

The above costs include charges relating to Agency staff accommodation and works depots, 
this includes the head office in Edinburgh. 

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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10. COMMERCIAL & TOURISM

 2013-14 2012-13 
 £000 £000

Visitor Operations 10,126 10,634

Business Development 6,916 6,133

Trading 4,256 4,203

 21,298 20,970

11. CENTRAL SERVICES
 2013-14 2012-13 
 £000 £000

Chief Executive & Communications 2,104 1,427

Information systems 2,986 3,556

Human resources 1,979 2,099

Training 325 342

Finance 1,191 1,098

Records Management 249 261

Major Projects 647 599

 9,481 9,382

The above costs include notional charges for departmental overhead and auditor’s remuneration 
(see note 28).
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12. PALACE OF HOLYROODHOUSE COSTS

Historic Scotland is responsible for the upkeep and maintenance of the Palace 
of Holyroodhouse.  The costs involved are detailed below:

 2013-14 2012-13 
 £000 £000

Employment costs 840 860

Conservation and maintenance 133 141

Accommodation cost 93 85

Capital expenditure 27 –

Total expenditure  1,093 1,086

Employment costs include both Historic Scotland staff and staff employed by the Royal Household 
and recharged to Historic Scotland. 

These costs are disclosed within the Agency’s accounts as follows:

 2013-14 2012-13 
 £000 £000

Conservation (note 9) 1,093 1,086

  1,093 1,086
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(i)

(a) Land  Buildings Dwellings Motor Computer Plant & Antiques & Assets  Total
  (Exc  vehicles equipment        Equipment works of art under
  dwellings)     (note a) construction
 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost         

At 1 April 2013 2,577 19,885 3,092 2,516 4,232 5,590 1,673 913 40,478

Additions during year – 52 – 481 443 390 – 198 1,564

Transfer from AuC – – – – – – 421 (421) –

Indexation 26 210 45 – – – – – 281

Disposals during year (69) (190) – (251) (111) (84) – (13) (718)

Transfers – – – – – – – – –

Impairment (28) (41) – – – – – – (69)

Revaluation (95) 1,759 (29) – – – – – 1,635

At 31 March 2014 2,411 21,675 3,108 2,746 4,564 5,896 2,094 677 43,171

         

Accumulated depreciation         

At 1 April 2013 – (1,674) (173) (1,789) (3,512) (4,690) (335) – (12,173)

Charge for the year  (560) (106) (303) (404) (301) (87) – (1,761)

Backlog depreciation – (18) (3) – – – – – (21)

Eliminated on disposal                        – 17 – 251 112 85 – – 465

Revaluation – 1,006 47 – – – – – 1,053

Transfers – – – – – – – – –

Impairments – – – – – – – – –

At 31 March 2014  (1,229) (235) (1,841) (3,804) (4,906) (422) – (12,437)

         

Net book value
at 31 March 2014 2,411 20,446 2,873 905 760 990 1,672 677 30,734

         

Asset Financing:         

Owned 2,411 20,446 2,873 905 760 990 1,672 677 30,734 

Net book value
at 31 March 2014 2,411 20,446 2,873 905 760 990 1,672 677 30,734

Net book value
at 31 March 2013 2,577 18,211 2,919 727 720 900 1,338 913 28,305

Notes: 

a. Three Tapestries at Stirling Castle were partially donated by the Historic Scotland Foundation. 
 The net book value of the donated assets held in Antiques & works of art at 31 March 2014 was £658,840.
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(b) Land  Buildings Dwellings Motor Computer Plant & Antiques & Assets under  Total
  (Exc  vehicles equipment        Equipment works of art construction
  dwellings)     (note a) 
 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost         

At 1 April 2012 2,582 19,409 2,718 2,484 4,158 5,771 1,673 1,225 40,020

Additions during year – – – 62 126 287 – 324 799

Transfer from AuC – – – – 128 – – (128) –

Indexation 61 515 64 – – – – – 640

Disposals during year (1) – – (30) (180) (468) – – (679)

Transfers – – – – – – – (508) (508)

Impairment (12) (13) – – – – – – (25)

Revaluation (53) (26) 310 – – – – – 231

At 31 March 2013 2,577 19,885 3,092 2,516 4,232 5,590 1,673 913 40,478

          

Accumulated depreciation         

At 1 April 2012 – (1,204) (135) (1,500) (3,178) (4,857) (252) – (11,126)

Charge for the year  (535) (89) (319) (509) (301) (83) – (1,836)

Backlog depreciation – (44) (5) – – – – – (49)

Eliminated on disposal                        – – – 30 175 468 – – 673

Revaluation – 109 56 – – – – – 165

Transfers – – – – – – – – –

Impairments – – – – – – – – –

At 31 March 2013  (1,674) (173) (1,789) (3,512) (4,690) (335) – (12,173)

         

Net book value
at 31 March 2013 2,577 18,211 2,919 727 720 900 1,338 913 28,305

         

Asset Financing:         

Owned 2,577 18,211 2,919 727 720 900 1,338 913 28,305

Net book value
at 31 March 2013 2,577 18,211 2,919 727 720 900 1,338 913 28,305

Net book value
at 31 March 2012 2,582 18,205 2,583 984 980 914 1,421 1,225 28,894

Notes: 

a. Three Tapestries at Stirling Castle were partially donated by the Historic Scotland Foundation. 
 The net book value of the donated assets held in Antiques & works of art at 31 March 2013 was £673,170. 
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(ii) Revaluations

The Valuation Office prepared valuations at 31 March 2014 where certain buildings were valued either 
above or below the estimates, these have been updated in the 2013-14 annual accounts. The useful 
remaining life has also been re-assessed.  

The total value of revalued assets is £9,046,500.  The combined effect of the revaluations is a increase in the 
net book value of these properties of £2,689,125.  This figure is also reflected in the revaluation reserve.  Due 
to impairment there was an amount of £69,000 written back to the income and expenditure account.

(iii) Depreciation and impairment charge
 2013-14  2012-13 
 £000 £000

Depreciation charge for the year  1,761 1,836

Amortisation charge for the year (note 14) 275 267

Impairment charge 69 25

Total charge for the year 2,105 2,128

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
 Computer software Websites Assets under Total
  & licences  Development
 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost    

Opening balance 1 April 2013 1,166 291 – 1,457

Additions during year – – – –

Transfers from AuD – – – –

Transfers 70 (70) – –

Disposals during year (70) – – (70)

Closing balance 31 March 2014 1,166 221 – 1,387

Accumulated amortisation    

Opening balance 1 April 2013 (732) (168) – (900)

Charge for the year (241) (34) – (275)

Transfers – – – –

Eliminated on disposal                     70 – – 70

Closing balance 31 March 2014 (903) (202) – (1,105)

    

Net book value at 31 March 2014 263 19 – 282

    

Asset Financing:   

Owned 263 19 – 282

Finance Leased – – – –

Contract – – – –

Net book value at 31 March 2014 263 19 – 282

    

Net book value  at 31 March 2013 434 123 – 557
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14. Intangible assets cont.
 Computer software Websites Assets under Total
  & licences  Development
 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost    

Opening balance 1 April 2012 718 291 – 1,009

Additions during year 6 – – 6

Transfers from AuD 508 – (508) –

Transfers – – 508 508

Disposals during year (66) – – (66)

Closing balance 31 March 2013 1,166 291 – 1,457

Accumulated amortisation    

Opening balance 1 April 2012 (599) (100) – (699)

Charge for the year (199) (68) – (267)

Transfers – – – –

Eliminated on disposal                     66 – – 66

Closing balance 31 March 2013 (732) (168) – (900)

    

Net book value at 31 March 2013 434 123 – 557

    

Asset Financing:   

Owned 434 123 – 557

Finance Leased – – – –

Contract – – – –

Net book value at 31 March 2012 434 123 – 557

Net book value  at 31 March 2011 119 191 – 310

15. HERITAGE ASSETS

(i) Collections Total
 £000 £000

Cost  

At 1 April 2013 361 361

Additions during year – –

Disposals during year – –

Revaluation – –

At 31 March 2014 361 361
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 Collections Total
 £000 £000

Cost  

At 1 April 2012 361 361

Additions during year – –

Disposals during year – –

Revaluation – –

At 31 March 2013 361 361

The valuation above solely relates to a collection of 7 paintings purchased by the Agency in 2005-06.

The values quoted for the collections are transaction costs based on purchase costs or the Agency’s 
best estimate of a current market valuation for donations.

Additions/Disposals in 2013-14
There were no additions or Disposals in 2013-14.

(ii) Five Year financial summary of heritage asset transactions

There were a few transactions during the periods and these were acquisitions by donation. The value 
of these donations is not material and obtaining a current valuation would involve disproportionate 
cost. There were no transactions in respect of heritage assets in the current and prior four years.

16. INVENTORIES

The main categories of inventory are retail stocks held in monument shops and raw materials and 
consumables held for building maintenance purposes.

 2013-14  2012-13 
 £000 £000

Retail 1,604 1,558

Raw materials and consumables 202 185

 1,806 1,743
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17. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

17(i) Amounts falling due within one year:

 2013-14 2012-13
 £000 £000

Trade receivables 628 725

Other receivables 67 101

Prepayments and accrued income 1,443 1,229

Recoverable VAT 673 219

 2,811 2,274

17(ii) Amounts falling due after more than one year

 2013-14 2012-13
 £000 £000

Prepayments and accrued income 11 9

17(iii) Intra Governmental balances

 Receivables: amounts falling  Receivables:  amounts falling  
 due within one year due after more than one year

 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13
 £000 £000  £000 £000

Balances with other central government bodies 735 358 – –

Balances with local authorities 39 242 – –

Balances with NHS bodies – – – –

Balances with public corporations and trading funds – – – –

Balances with bodies external to government 2,037 1,674 11 9

 2,811 2,274 11 9

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 2013-14 2012-13
 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 1,249 2,180

Net Change in cash and cash equivalent balances 1,151 (931)

Balance at 31 March 2,400 1,249

  

The following balances at 31 March were held at:

Government Banking Service  1,924 547

Other bank accounts 171 76

Cash in transit and money held at monuments 305 626

Balance at 31 March 2,400 1,249  
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19. TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

19(i) Amounts falling due within one year

 2013-14 2012-13
 £000 £000

Trade Payables 1,007 1,085

Other taxation and social security 508 558

Balance with Scottish Government 2,400 1,249

Other Payables 43 13

Accruals and deferred income 14,094 13,711

 18,052 16,616

19(ii) Amounts falling due after more than one year

 2013-14 2012-13
 £000 £000

Accruals and deferred income 261 533

19(iii) Intra Governmental balances

 Payables: amounts falling Payables: amounts falling  
 due within one year due after more than one year

 2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13
 £000 £000  £000 £000

Balances with other central government bodies 3,053 2,878 – –

Balances with local authorities 2,975 3,638 – –

Balances with NHS bodies – 2 – –

Balances with public corporations and trading funds 13 39 – –

Balances with bodies external to government 12,011 10,059 261 533

 18,052 16,616 261 533

20. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

 Pension Compensation Other Total
 costs payments provisions
 £000 £000  £000 £000

Opening balance at 1 April 2013 381 147 169 697

Less net amount released during current year (143) (53) (116) (312)

Charge to current year income and expenditure – 146 – 146

    

Closing balance at 31 March 2014 238 240 53 531
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Analysis of expected timing of any resulting outflows of economic benefits  

Payable in 1 year 106 240 53 399

Payable between 2-5 yrs 125 – – 125

Payable between 6-10 yrs 7 – – 7

At 31 March 2014 238 240 53 531

 Pension Compensation Other Total
 costs payments provisions
 £000 £000  £000 £000

Opening balance at 1 April 2012 511 50 102 663

Less net amount released during current year (158) – – (158)

Charge to current year income and expenditure 28 97 67 192

    

Closing balance at 31 March 2013 381 147 169 697

Analysis of expected timing of any resulting outflows of economic benefits   

Payable in 1 year 135 147 169 451

Payable between 2-5 yrs 215 - - 215

Payable between 6-10 yrs 31 - - 31

At 31 March 2013 381 147 169 697

The provision for pension costs relates to the compensation element of the former Early Retirement Package payable to officers 
who were over the age of 50 but below the age of 60.  On attaining the age of 60 the compensation element ceases.

Compensation payments relate to claims for accidents to staff of Historic Scotland and visitors to the monuments. They are 
estimated based on the information received about the progress of the claims and the likelihood of any potential liability. It is 
expected that final settlement of these claims will be made within 2014-15.

Other provisions relate to a dispute with a supplier. As at the 31 March 2014 the assessment of costs due to be paid by Historic 
Scotland is £53,000. 

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk


HISTORIC SCOTLAND ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2013-14

50        Historic Scotland    Annual Report 2013-14

21. COMMITMENTS UNDER LEASES

Operating leases

Total payments for operating leases in 2013-14 was £1,266,226. (2012-13: £1,228,860). 

Total future minimum lease payments under operating leases are given 
in the table below for each of the following periods.

 2012-13 2011-12
 £000 £000

Obligations under operating leases for 
the following periods comprise:  

Buildings:  

Not later than one year 1,031 979

Later than one year and not later than five years 2,820 3,192

Later than five years 3,404 2,696

 7,255 6,867 
 

Other:  

Not later than one year 4 12

Later than one year and not later than five years 3 17

 7 29

Finance leases

There are no finance leases in operation (31 March 2013: nil)

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As the cash requirements of the Agency are met through the Scottish Government budgeting process, 
financial instruments play a more limited role in creating risk than would apply to a non-public sector 
body of a similar size. The majority of financial instruments relate to contracts to buy non-financial 
items in line with the Agency’s expected purchase and usage requirements and the Agency is therefore 
exposed to little credit, liquidity or market risk.

23. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no material contingent liabilities at 31 March 2014. (31 March 2013: nil).
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24. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

Historic Scotland is committed to expenditure resulting from works contracts and contractual 
agreements offered and entered into under the Historic Buildings Repair Grants Scheme prior 
to 31 March 2014. As at that date, these commitments totalled:

 2013-14 2012-13
 £000 £000

Capital commitments due within one year 8,716 9,383

Due within two to five years inclusive 5,958 3,706

Due after five years – –

 14,674 13,089

Historic Scotland has also given indicative authorisations to grant applicants. While these do 
not represent a firm offer of grant they reflect future potential offers and are an indication of 
the pressure on grants which Historic Scotland faces. As at 31 March 2014, indicative 
authorisations totalled:

 2013-14 2012-13
 £000 £000

Indicative authorisations 20,711 25,338

In addition to financial commitments under the Historic Buildings Repair Grants Scheme, the 
Agency has capital commitments in respect of building works on properties in its care. As at 
31 March 2014, these commitments totalled:

 2013-14 2012-13
 £000 £000

Capital commitments due within one year 782 187

Due within two to five years inclusive – –

Due after five years – –

 782 187

25. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

There are no material post balance sheet events that require to be adjusted in the accounts 
or to be disclosed.

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk


HISTORIC SCOTLAND ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2013-14

52        Historic Scotland    Annual Report 2013-14

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Historic Scotland is an executive Agency of the Scottish Government. During the year Historic Scotland had a 
number of transactions with other government departments and agencies.

During 2009-10 Historic Scotland entered into a Limited Liability Partnership with Glasgow School of Art to 
form The Centre for Digital Documentation and Visualisation (CDDV) LLP. CDDV will deliver the digital 
documentation of the five Scottish World Heritage sites and five international Heritage sites in a project 
known as the Scottish Ten.

During 2013-14 Historic Scotland set up a Joint SMT to foster closer contacts in the lead up to the Merger. 
During the year RCAHMS invoiced Historic Scotland for £336,991 for grants in relation to various projects.

In 2013-14 Historic Scotland invoiced CDDV LLP for £47,014 for services provided as part of the project, 
CDDV LLP invoiced the Agency for £253,822 for technical and expert services provided to the Agency and 
were awarded a grant of £25,000 for work related to Robert the Bruce.

As at the 31 March 2014 the balances were:

• Trade Payables (Note 19) – £10,000

• Prepayments and Accrued Income (Note 17) - £2,130

27. LOSSES STATEMENT

Losses and special payments for the year total £212,961 (2012-13: £147,843).

There were no individual losses or special payments in excess of £300,000 which would require 
separate disclosure.

28. NOTIONAL CHARGES

The following notional expenditure charges have been included in the accounts:

 2013-14 2012-13
 £000 £000

Departmental overhead 130 149

Auditor’s remuneration 67 71

 197 220

A notional departmental overhead has been based on the usage of certain central services of the 
Scottish Government.

Auditor’s remuneration is a notional charge, as notified to us by our auditor KPMG LLP, in respect of 
audit work carried out during 2013-14. No other services were supplied by KPMG LLP during the period 
ended 31 March 2014 (2012-13: nil).



HISTORIC SCOTLAND ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2013-14

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk            53

29. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS AS AT 31 MARCH 2014

All Historic Scotland operations are in the UK and are currently organised into the following 
operating divisions.

Policy – The group is responsible for leading on the Scottish Government’s policy on the Historic 
Environment and contributing to other Scottish Government policy areas which impact on the historic 
environment.

During 2013-14 the Strategic Policy function transferred back to within the Scottish Government. This 
was as a result of the policy review and strategy development discussions.

Heritage Management – Heritage Management is responsible for protecting and providing advice on 
the management of the most important parts of Scotland’s historic environment, including listed 
buildings, scheduled monuments, Battlefields, World Heritage Sites, wreck sites and gardens and 
designed landscapes.

Heritage Management fulfils statutory functions on behalf of Ministers to protect the historic 
environment and works with a range of stakeholders and other public bodies such as local authorities 
within the Scottish planning system.

Conservation – The Conservation group looks after over 300 buildings and monuments on behalf of 
the Scottish Ministers. The aim of the Conservation Group is to promote better technical 
understanding and care of the built environment, and to inform and sustain the conservation, repair 
and maintenance of the built environment. This is achieved through undertaking technical and 
scientific research, supporting the perpetuation and understanding of traditional building skills, 
understanding and promoting the use and availability of traditional building materials, providing 
specialist technical and scientific advice, providing applied specialist conservation services and delivery 
of technical education and outreach activity.

Commercial & Tourism – The group is responsible for the operation of 345 monuments and their 
associated collections, providing access to and understanding of the properties. The group also 
ensures that this nationally important collection plays its part in heritage tourism and celebrates 
Scottish identity to a wide range of audiences. Historic Scotland holds the properties on behalf of 
Scottish Ministers, most of these are free to visit but admission is charged at the 78 staffed sites.

Central Services – Provides support and communication for the Agency both internally and externally. 
It consists of the Chief Executive’s Group, Finance, Human Resources, Communications and Investments.
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 Policy Heritage Conservation Commercial Central Services Total
  management  & Tourism Investments Other
 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Commercial Income – – – 36,337 – – 36,337

Other Receipts – 98 1,263 216 128 152 1,857

Total Income – 98 1,263 36,553 128 152 38,194

Administration Costs 353 3,482 17,849 11,641 363 5,655 39,343

Programme Current 8 321 7,723 6,086 17,273 2,680 34,091

Heritage Capital – – (1) 15 – – 14

Operational Capital – – 890 110 – 248 1,248

Direct Costs of Sales – – – 3,558 – – 3,558

Depreciation – – – – – 2,105 2,105

Bad Debts – – – – – 27 27

       

Total Expenditure 361 3,803 26,461 21,410 17,636 10,715 80,386

       

Net Operating Cost before 
Scottish Government 
funding as at 31 March 2014 (361) (3,705) (25,198) 15,143 (17,508) (10,563) (42,192)

Reconciliations of the total segment measures to respective items included in the financial 
statements are as follows:
 Note Total
  £000

Segmental total Income  38,194

Donated Asset Income – Stirling Tapestries  –

Recharged Expense coded to other income  –

Total Income as per Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure  38,194

  

Segmental total expenditure  80,386

  

Notional Charges 28 197

Additions to Property, plant and equipment and intangibles  (1,503)

Recharged expense in other income  –

Total Expenditure as per Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure  79,080

  

Net Operating Cost before Scottish Government funding   (40,886)
as at 31 March 2014 

These divisions are the basis on which Historic Scotland monitors its operations and upon which decisions 
are made by the Senior Management Team. Transfers between these segments is at cost price.
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 Policy Heritage Conservation Commercial Central Services Total
  management  & Tourism Investments Other
 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Commercial  Income – – – 32,265 – – 32,265

Other Receipts – 40 1,105 147 95 94 1,481

Total Income – 40 1,105 32,412 95 94 33,746

Administration Costs 809 3,489 17,411 11,671 353 5,539 39,272

Programme Current 25 328 7,108 5,018 19,227 2,954 34,660

Heritage Capital – – (3) 13 – – 10

Operational Capital – 7 604 51 – 112 774

Direct Costs of Sales – –  4,245 – – 4,245

Depreciation – – – – – 2,128 2,128

Bad Debts – – – – – 137 137

       

Total Expenditure 834 3,824 25,120 20,998 19,580 10,870 81,226

       

Net Operating Cost before 
Scottish Government 
funding as at 31 March 2013 (834) (3,784) (24,015) 11,414 (19,485) (10,776) (47,480)

Reconciliations of the total segment measures to respective items included in the financial 
statements are as follows:
 Note Total
  £000

Segmental total Income  33,746

Donated Asset Income – Stirling Tapestries  –

Recharged Expense coded to other income  –

Total Income as per Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure  33,746

  

Segmental total expenditure  81,226

  

Notional Charges 28 220

Additions to Property, plant and equipment and intangibles  (803)

Recharged expense in  other income  –

Total Expenditure as per Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure  80,643

  

Net Operating Cost before Scottish Government funding   (46,897)
as at 31 March 2013 
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30. FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE AGENCY’S HERITAGE ASSETS

Historic Scotland is an Executive Agency of the Scottish Government and we are charged with safeguarding the 
nation’s historic environment and promoting its understanding and enjoyment on behalf of Scottish Ministers.

Historic Scotland is responsible for 345 archaeological sites and historic monuments across Scotland. 
The majority of these are treated as non-operational heritage assets in that they are held primarily for the 
maintenance of the nation’s heritage. Non-operational assets are not valued and are therefore not included 
in the accounts. Assets treated as non-operational fall within the following categories:

Crown Properties

There are thirty five Crown properties of which eight are buildings in good condition with the structure 
essentially complete. Examples within this category include:

Edinburgh Castle, Stirling Castle, Argyll’s Lodging, Blackness Castle, Linlithgow Palace, Fort Charlotte, Dunblane 
Cathedral and Glasgow Cathedral.

Other Properties

The remaining properties include archaeological field monuments of all periods, ruined castles, abbeys, 
churches and industrial sites. Examples within this category include:

Maeshowe, Melrose Abbey, Stanley Mills, Skara Brae and Urquhart Castle.

Many of the properties that are cared for by Historic Scotland are not owned by Scottish Ministers but held 
under guardianship arrangements. Title to the property remains with the original owner while management 
control of the site rests with Historic Scotland.

A full list of Crown and other properties including opening times can be found at Historic Scotland’s website – 
http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/index/places.htm

Collections

The Collections Unit is responsible for historic objects and archaeological artefacts held permanently or 
temporarily by Historic Scotland, particularly those at properties in the care of Scottish Ministers.

The Unit looks after varied collections of national and international cultural significance at over 140 sites 
dispersed across Scotland. These collections range from simple Neolithic bone implements, Pictish symbol 
stones and ornate medieval architectural carved stones to fine 19th century oil paintings by renowned artists 
such as Henry Raeburn.

http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/index/places.htm
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Preservation and Management 

Crown properties & other properties

Historic Scotland is responsible for looking after 345 of the most important and inspirational places in 
Scotland. Sites are managed on behalf of Scottish Ministers and for the wider benefit of people living in 
and visiting Scotland. Further details on conservation and access can be found in the Scottish Historic 
Environment Policy – December 2011 (weblink below), which also outlines the procedure for taking 
properties into state care. 

http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/index/heritage/policy/shep.htm

As well as undertaking extensive conservation and maintenance work on all monuments, Historic Scotland 
is responsible for opening them to the public, aiming to ensure all visitors leave the sites with enhanced 
appreciation, knowledge and understanding of the role these sites have played in Scottish history and 
their importance in our contemporary society. This is achieved this through the work of our Commercial & 
Tourism branches; Conservation; Visitor Services and Business Development, and finally Major Projects. 

While all of these branches have individual responsibilities and targets, the work undertaken in one will 
affect another’s aims to promote co-ordinated planning and philosophy throughout the Agency. 

A business plan was drawn up to outline how we intend to fulfil our responsibilities over the next year, 
with a wider outlook over the next five years. It records how we aim to meet the targets listed in the 
Historic Scotland Corporate Plan and help those interested in Properties in Care to understand the 
direction in which we are moving.

The Business Plan is available here:
http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/pic-business-plan.pdf

Collections

Collection Managers for each region conduct regular site visits liaising with regional and site based 
colleagues to ensure that high standards of care are achieved and maintained.

Meticulous documentation is held site-by-site of all the collections at our properties and the control 
of movement of objects is a core part of the Collection Registrar’s job. These records are maintained on 
the Collection database that currently contains details on over 29,000 objects, which is reviewed and 
updated annually.

Acquisitions, donations and disposals to the collections are only made if the item(s) under consideration 
meet the criteria set out in Historic Scotland’s operational policy. 

http://www.historic-scotland.gov.uk/acquisition-and-disposal-of-collections.pdf
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HISTORIC SCOTLAND

DIRECTION BY THE SCOTTISH MINISTERS

in accordance with section 19(4) of the Public Finance and Accountability 
(Scotland) Act 2000

1. The statement of accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2006 
and subsequent years shall comply with the accounting principles 
and disclosure requirements of the edition of the Government 
Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) which is in force for the 
year for which the statement of accounts are prepared.

2. The accounts shall be prepared so as to give a true and fair view of the 
income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses, and cash flows for the 
financial year, and of the state of affairs as at the end of the financial year.

3. This direction shall be reproduced as an appendix to the statement of accounts. 

The direction given on 29 March 2001 is hereby revoked.  

 

 

Signed by the authority of the Scottish Ministers

Dated 17 January 2006
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Introduction

In a powerful drive towards a low carbon economy, 
the Scottish Government has set ambitious climate 
change targets; to slash Scotland’s carbon emissions 
by 80% by 2050, with an interim reduction of 42% 
by 2020. These targets present Scotland with 
significant social and economic opportunities, 
as well as challenges, and will require a range 
of actions across society and the economy.

As an executive agency of the Scottish Government, 
and a ‘major player’ under Scottish Ministers, 
Historic Scotland has an obligation to significantly 
reduce its impact on our environment and ensure 
the sustainable future of our built heritage for 
generations to come. With the publication of 
our Carbon Management Plan in June 2011, 
followed by our Climate Change Action Plan in 
March 2012, Historic Scotland has made a public 
commitment to reduce its carbon emissions 
by 25% of 2008-09 levels by April 2015.

In January 2011, the Scottish Government 
issued guidance on Sustainability Reporting to 
all public bodies. The purpose of this reporting 
is to improve performance management in 
relation to sustainability, through greater 
accountability and transparency. Through such 
reporting, public bodies can make better informed 
decisions and set meaningful targets based on 
the analysis of historic and comparative data.

In accordance with the guidance, this Sustainability 
Report for Historic Scotland highlights the Agency’s 
high level performance for financial year 2013-
14 in a number of key areas: greenhouse gas 
(GHG) emissions, waste management, business 
travel, water consumption, action on biodiversity, 
sustainable procurement and adaptation. A more 
detailed breakdown of the Agency’s performance 
against its Climate Change Action Plan and Carbon 
Management Plan will be published in autumn 2014.

This report is Historic Scotland’s third annual 
Sustainability Report. As promised in our last 
report we have broadened the data to include 
our baseline year (2008-09), against which 
our current performance is measured. Where 
possible, we have also included data since April 
2011, allowing us to meet the objectives of public 
sector sustainability reporting; performance 
management, accountability and transparency.

Some adjustments have been made to the 
historic data contained within this report, when 
compared with the data contained in previous 
reports. This has occurred where errors have 
been found, or where more accurate data 
has been obtained following publication.

A NOTE ON BASELINE DATA

In 2013-14, Historic Scotland conducted a partial 
review of baseline data. As a result, the baseline 
data contained within this report does not 
match that of our Carbon Management Plan.

Key to this change was the utilisation of Resource 
Efficient Scotland’s Carbon Metric tool to 
calculate the carbon emissions associated with 
waste, following instruction from the Scottish 
Government. Some minor adjustments were also 
made to the energy and water data to ensure a 
consistent use of conversion factors between the 
baseline and subsequent years. These changes 
have resulted in an overall increase of 33% in our 
previously calculated baseline emissions, which is 
largely due to the new carbon metric for waste.

The following summary and overview graphs show 
data recalculated using the new carbon metric tool.
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PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

Area Actual Performance 2013-14 Target Status

Total GHG Emissions 8,316 tCO2e -20% -18%

Total Energy Consumption 17,534,663 kWh -8% -16%

Total Waste Disposal 1,212 tonnes

Recycle Rate 41%

Total Water Consumption 54,026m3

Total Energy Expenditure £1,407,086

CRC Expenditure £64,766

Total Waste Expenditure £111,505

Total Business Travel Expenditure £612,354

Total Water Expenditure £148,910
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TARGETS AND COMMENTARY

Historic Scotland’s Carbon Management Plan sets 
an ambitious target to reduce operational GHG 
emissions by 25% by April 2015, against a baseline 
year of 2008-09. This will be achieved by reducing 
the carbon emissions associated with energy 
use in our buildings, waste generation, business 
travel and water consumption. Whilst no year 
on year targets have been set, Historic Scotland 
must on average reduce its carbon emissions 
by 5% each year to achieve this target. Historic 
Scotland must demonstrate an overall reduction 
of 20% during 2013-14 to remain on target.

During 2013-14, Historic Scotland achieved an 
overall reduction in GHG emissions of 18% against 
the baseline year. This consists of a 19% reduction 
in energy emissions, a 22% reduction in waste 
emissions, an 18% increase in business travel 
emissions and an 8% reduction in water emissions. 
This means that we are slightly behind target.

GHG EMISSIONS OVERVIEW 2008-09  2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 % Change 

Grand total  10,176  8,255  8,619  8,316  -18%

Energy  6,317  5,535  5,902  5,092  -19%

Waste  3,263  1,999  1,968  2,533  -22%

Business travel  547  672  698  647  18%

Water  49  49  50  45  -8%GH
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ENERGY 2008-09  2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 % Change 

Electricity 3,863 3,357  3,570  3,114  -19%

Natural gas  2,283  1,909  2,152  1,826  -20%

Other fuels  171  269  180 152 -11%

Total Energy  20,876,906 18,911,128  20,098,336 17,534,663  -16%

Electricity  7,787,221  7,425,676  7,760,354  6,990,145  -10%

Natural gas  12,342,571  10,398,443  11,618,945  9,921,750  -20%

Other fuels  747,114  1,087,009  719,037  622,768  -17%

Total Energy  £1,551,671  £1,251,390  £1,509,204  £1,407,086  -9%

Electricity  £1 ,039,079  £798,364  £1,001,574  £983,323 -5%

Natural gas  £412,048  £365,255  £434,177  £371,542 -10%

Other fuels  £100,543  £87,771  £73,453  £52,221  -48%

CRC Energy Efficiency Scheme   £61,517  £73,570  £64,766  n/a

3rd party re-charge: Electricity  -£96,588  -£122,329  -£131,564  -£94,964  -2%

3rd party re-charge: Natural gas  -£85,691  -£44,958  -£76,675  -£82,251  -4%
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TARGETS AND COMMENTARY

Energy use in our buildings represents 61% 
of our overall carbon footprint. In 2013-14, 
Historic Scotland set a Key Performance Target 
(KPT) to reduce our energy consumption by 
8%, against a baseline year of 2008-09.

The data shown above demonstrates that Historic 
Scotland has exceeded this KPT, reducing total 
energy consumption by 16%. This can be broken 
down as follows: a 10% reduction in electricity 
consumption, a 20% reduction in natural gas 
consumption and a 17% reduction in other fuels 
(i.e. burning oil, LPG and gas oil) consumption.

These reductions can be attributed to the ongoing 
fabric and technological improvements throughout 
the HS estate, the continued roll-out of Climate 
Change Awareness Training to staff members, and 
mild weather. Finally, the essential maintenance work 
being carried out at the Palace of Holyroodhouse 
(as previously reported), has now been completed, 
allowing the building to achieve energy reductions.

Financially, Historic Scotland has reduced its total 
energy spend by 9%, despite rising fuel costs. 
Spend on the CRC Energy Efficiency Scheme has 
reduced by 12% against the previous year.

DIRECT BUSINESS IMPACTS

The greatest impacts arise from electricity 
and natural gas consumption in our buildings. 
Historic Scotland continues to roll-out technical 
improvements to our estate as outlined in 
our Carbon Management Plan. Reducing our 
energy consumption plays a pivotal role in 
meeting our carbon targets. It also produces 
cost savings, in terms of both direct energy 
costs and the CRC Energy Efficiency Scheme.

INDIRECT BUSINESS IMPACTS

Reducing energy consumption across our large 
and technically challenging estate plays a role in 
meeting national climate change targets. Also, 
through our range of publications, borne from 
technical research and our own experiences, Historic 
Scotland continues to disseminate information 
to a range of audiences on improving energy 
efficiency in traditional and historic buildings.

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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WASTE 2008-09  2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 % Change 

Total waste  3,263  1,999  1,968  2,533  -22%

Total arising  3,477  2,222  2,313  2,866  -18%

Landfill  294  149  70 142  -52%

Recycled/re-used  -508  -372  -149  -229  -55%

Energy from waste  0  -11  -21  -43  n/a

Construction landfill  0  11  62  40  n/a

Construction recycled  0  0  -308  -243 n/a

Total waste 1,383  924  1,003  1,212  -12%

Landfill  851  432  204  409  -52%

Recycled/re-used  532  390  157  240  -55%

Energy from waste 0  31  58  121  n/a

Composted  0  40  83  72  n/a

Construction landfill  0  31  180  116  n/a

Construction recycled  0  0  322  254  n/a

Hazardous waste  0  0  0  0  n/a

Total waste disposal   £127,871  £134,760  £111,505 n/a

Non-hazardous waste   £127,871  £134,760  £111,505 n/a 

Hazardous waste   – –  – n/a

GH
G 

em
is

si
on

s  
(t

CO
2e)

Ac
tu

al
 o

ut
pu

t (
to

nn
es

)
Fi

na
nc

ia
l 

In
di

ca
to

rs

EXPENDITURE: WASTE DISPOSAL

GRAPHICAL ANALYSIS

WASTE COMPOSITION

£-

£20
£40
£60
£80

£100
£120
£140
£160

2008-9 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Landfill

Recycled/re-used

Energy from waste

Composted

Construction landfill

Construction recycled

Hazardous waste

34%

20%10%

6%

9%

21%

0%



SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2013-14

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk            07

TARGETS AND COMMENTARY

Waste represents around 31% of our overall carbon 
footprint. Historic Scotland has not set any specific 
waste reduction targets. However, our Carbon 
Management Plan does include waste in its overall 
target to reduce operational GHG emissions.

Our Waste Prevention and Reuse Plan, published 
in 2013, highlights a number of opportunities 
and objectives to reduce waste from our 
operations. Work during 2013-14 included 
waste audits at a number of our sites, as well as 
detailed analysis to understand how our waste is 
handled. In January 2014, new waste regulations 
came into force regarding the segregation 
of recyclable material. The Agency has been 
working to improve compliance in this area.

The data above shows an overall reduction of 12% 
in waste tonnage against our baseline year. It is 
important to note the improvement in data quality, 
resulting in a greater ability to demonstrate the 
segregation of waste. Overall, Historic Scotland 
has a recycle rate of approximately 41%. There 
is clear opportunity here for improvement.

Financial indicators demonstrate a cost reduction 
of 17% from the previous year. At this stage, we are 
unable to give a comparison against the baseline year 
due to insufficient data. We are now addressing the 
shortcomings in our waste management processes, 
which is providing improved data year after year.

DIRECT BUSINESS IMPACTS

Historic Scotland produces a large amount of waste 
through a number of different operations, such as 
visitors, offices and construction. The organisation 
produces waste at approximately 150 sites, with 
collections from over 40 contractors. Reducing 
our waste output, diverting the remainder from 
landfill and streamlining our waste management 
has the potential to significantly reduce the 
Agency’s environmental impact and deliver 
both financial and management efficiencies.

INDIRECT BUSINESS IMPACTS

Historic Scotland is able to place certain 
requirements on waste and other (e.g. catering, 
landscaping, etc.) contractors in terms of 
waste disposal performance. The Agency is 
also in a position to influence visitors and staff 
members through the provision of recycling 
facilities and visible signage at our sites.

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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BUSINESS TRAVEL 2008-09  2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 % Change 

Total business travel  547  672 698 647 18%

Fleet  167  436  431  467  180%

Boats  24  14  33  17  -30%

Plant  72  38  68  25  -65%

Hire car  175  40  37  37  -79%

Air  99  79  81  61  -38%

Rail  7  30  14  14  100%

Ferry  1  0  1  1  0%

Taxi  2  2  3  4  95%

Mileage claim  0  33  30  21  n/a

Total business travel  £592,525  £646,435  £699,440  £612,354  3%
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TARGETS AND COMMENTARY

Business travel represents 8% of our overall carbon 
footprint. Historic Scotland has not set any specific 
business travel reduction targets, but our Carbon 
Management Plan does include this in its overall 
target to reduce operational GHG emissions.

Historic Scotland is a large and geographically 
spread organisation with a range of business 
functions and staff travel is essential to carry 
out day to day business objectives. In many 
circumstances, our operations may require us to 
travel outwith Scotland, to other parts of the UK 
or abroad. Historic Scotland encourages staff to 
choose more sustainable forms of business travel 
in order to reduce costs and GHG emissions. 
During 2013-14, the Climate Change Team has 
drafted a Sustainable Business Travel Policy for 
the Agency, which we aim to launch in 2014-15.

Overall, business travel emissions have increased 
by 18% when compared with the baseline year. 
The most notable causes of this are an increase 
in fleet and rail emissions of 180% and 100% 
respectively. Despite this, however, some forms 
of travel have seen significant reductions in 
emissions e.g. hire cars and air travel which 
have reduced by 79% and 38% respectively.

The reduction in air travel is likely a result of the 
completion of laser scanning activities for the 
Scottish Ten Project in Australia, meaning staff were 
making fewer long-haul journeys. These results also 
suggest there is an element of change between 
the forms of travel, with staff members choosing to 
use a fleet vehicle rather than a hire car. However, 
whilst this is a positive step, it is clear that more 
needs to be done to reduce the need for travel in 
the first place. This will be a focus for 2014-15.

Business travel expenditure has increased by 
only 3% against the baseline year. This would 
suggest that whilst staff are travelling more, they 
are doing so by more cost effective means.

DIRECT BUSINESS IMPACTS

Reducing staff travel will help to reduce Historic 
Scotland’s carbon footprint, though this is a 
relatively small proportion of our overall emissions 
compared to energy or waste. The greatest impacts 
will be a reduction in both direct and indirect costs. 
Encouraging employees to choose healthier forms 
of travel, such as walking or cycling, can help to 
improve staff well-being and increase productivity.

INDIRECT BUSINESS IMPACTS

Reducing emissions from business travel will play 
a part towards achieving national climate change 
targets and demonstrating exemplary behaviours. 
Historic Scotland is also in a position to influence 
staff members, third party organisations and visitors 
in choosing more sustainable forms of transport.

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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TARGETS AND COMMENTARY

Water represents less than 1% of our overall 
carbon footprint. Historic Scotland has not set any 
specific water reduction targets but, our Carbon 
Management Plan does include this in its overall 
target to reduce operational GHG emissions.

The data presented above demonstrates that 
metered water consumption has reduced by 
9% when compared with the baseline year.

Because water emissions form a small proportion 
of Historic Scotland’s carbon footprint we have 
not prioritised water efficiency to the same level 
as energy and waste. However, during 2013-
14 some consumption analysis was carried 
out, which highlighted a number of leakages. 
Repair of these leakages has likely played some 
part in reducing overall consumption.

Water expenditure has increased by 3%, which 
is consistent with the increase in unit price.

DIRECT BUSINESS IMPACTS

Reducing water consumption across Historic 
Scotland’s estate would help to reduce costs 
and carbon emissions. However, given the small 
proportion that water consumption represents, this 
must be carefully considered on a cost/benefit basis.

INDIRECT BUSINESS IMPACTS

The processing, pumping and sanitation of fresh 
water is an energy intensive process, contributing 
1% to the UK’s national CO2 emissions. Reducing 
water consumption and improving efficiency can 
play a vital role in meeting national targets.

WATER 2008-09  2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 % Change 

Total water emissions  49  49  50  45  -8%

Supply  14  16  17  15  5%

Waste  34  32  33  30  -14%

Metered supplies  48,189  48,325  49,485  43,962  -9%

Unmetered supplies (estimate)  9,760  10,608  10,997  10,064  3%

Water supply  £144,467  £148,655  £162,793  £148,910  3%

3rd party re-charge: Water  – -£6 ,046  -£32,900  -£17,781  n/a
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BIODIVERSITY

TARGETS AND COMMENTARY

Throughout 2013-14, our Ranger Service has undertaken 
a range of activities to promote and support

biodiversity. These include:

•  Promoting awareness of biodiversity through our 
interpretation and public events programmes 
which attracted over 6,500 visitors to sites;

•  Raising awareness of biodiversity through community 
talks, conservation task groups and walks;

•  Attendance at various county and local shows 
to promote diversity at our sites;

•  Providing advice, guidance and assistance to 
colleagues on subjects such as bats, nesting 
birds, dead porpoises, and others;

•  Volunteer Rangers and Conservation surveyors 
undertook 116 surveys for 10 different 
species/groups within Holyrood Park;

•  ‘Bag the Bruck’ and ‘Pick up 3 Pieces’ litter projects in 
Orkney, and reintroducing a nationally scarce wildflower, 
maiden pink (Dianthus deltoides), to five sites around 
Holyrood Park. Wildflower meadows have been established 
in Holyrood Park on previously amenity mown grasslands;

•  Historic Scotland has signed up to the national 
Geo-diversity Charter and will work with 
partners towards its aims and goals.

DIRECT BUSINESS IMPACTS

Through improved biodiversity, Historic Scotland has an 
opportunity to enhance visitor experience at sites, through 
public engagement. This provides strong reputational and 
revenue drivers, to ensure the Agency can continue to 
safeguard the historic environment for generations to come.

INDIRECT BUSINESS IMPACTS

Protection and promotion of biodiversity will not only 
play an important role in enhancing Historic Scotland 
sites, but will also safeguard native species. Through 
interpretive media, the Agency’s public outreach will 
help to raise awareness and carry this important message 
to both national and international communities.

www.historic-scotland.gov.uk
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SUSTAINABLE PROCUREMENT

CLIMATE CHANGE ADAPTATION

TARGETS AND COMMENTARY

Historic Scotland and VisitScotland continue to engage 
with existing and potential suppliers, advising them on 
procurement systems and the Quick Quote process on 
Public Contracts Scotland. This takes the form of half-day 
sessions where suppliers come along to hear of potential 
opportunities for working with us, and encourages 
suppliers to get in touch with our business areas to identify 
opportunities. This has focussed on small and medium-
sized enterprises (SME), and feedback has shown that 
many suppliers were previously unaware of the wide 
range of Historic Scotland’s activities. We have also now 
included the National Trust for Scotland in this initiative.

We continue to use a pre-selection document that removes 
the requirement for potential contractors to demonstrate 
a high financial turnover and high indemnity insurance 
thresholds, all of which act as barriers to SME participation.

Historic Scotland also uses ‘Sustainability Tests’ for larger 
contracts to ensure that we build sustainable criteria 
into the specification of the product/services where 
possible and also link this to evaluation criteria.

In May 2014, the Scottish Government published Climate 
Ready Scotland: Scottish Climate Change Adaptation 
Programme, which sets out the government’s aims over 
the next five years to prepare Scotland for climate change. 
In this, Historic Scotland has been mandated to research 
the impacts of climate change on traditional buildings, 
disseminate knowledge, skills and tools to manage these, 
and work to increase the resilience of Scotland’s built 
heritage and historic environment. These objectives 
will be a focus for Historic Scotland over the coming 
years, and annual progress will be reported here.

DIRECT BUSINESS IMPACTS

Through sustainable procurement, Historic Scotland has 
an opportunity to act as an exemplar in supporting local 
communities, jobs and skills. With effective management, 
this will provide many reputational benefits.

INDIRECT BUSINESS IMPACTS

The use of sustainability criteria in the tender evaluation 
process creates a demand for sustainable business, 
promoting wider competition and encouraging businesses 
to be more socially and environmentally responsible in 
providing their services. Through sustainable procurement 
and with our wide geographical coverage, Historic Scotland 
can assist in supporting local skills and jobs, subject to the 
overarching Procurement Regulations requirements.





our historic environment provides 

a strong foundation in building 

a successful future for Scotland.
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